Public Document Pack

AGENDA
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Tuesday 30 March 2021 at 6.30 pm
Virtual Meeting - Online

Borough Council Representatives:

Councillors Backhouse, Bland, Everitt, Hamilton,
Ms Palmer, Rands, Scott and Warne

Independent Members:

Quigley and Turner

Parish/Town Council Representatives:

Councillors Mackonochie and Edwards

Quorum:

3 Members, to include at least one independent member

1

Presiding Member (Pages 5 - 6)
To elect a member of the committee to preside over the meeting.

2

Apologies for Absence (Pages 7 - 8)
To receive any apologies for absence.

3

Declarations of Interest (Pages 9 - 10)
To receive any declarations of interest by Members in items on the agenda in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please
contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting.

4

Notification of Persons Registered to Speak (Pages 11 - 12)
To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to speak, of which due
notice has been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which
item(s) they wish to speak on.

5

Minutes of the meeting dated 24 November 2020 (Pages 13 - 18)
To approve the minutes of a previous meeting as a correct record. The only issue relating to
the minutes that can be discussed is their accuracy.

6

External Audit Progress Report (Pages 19 - 56)
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the associated report.

7

Strategic Risk Register (Pages 57 - 80)
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the associated report.

Page 1

8

Interim Internal Audit and Assurance Report 2020/21 (Pages 81 - 94)
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the associated report.

9

Internal Audit and Assurance Plan 2021/22 (Pages 95 - 128)
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the associated report.

10

Update on complaints received under the Members' Code of Conduct (Pages 129 134)
To consider and decide on the recommendations set out in the associated report.

11

Work Programme (Pages 135 - 136)
To consider the Committee’s future work programme.

12

Urgent Business (Pages 137 - 138)
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be
stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

13

Date of the Next Meeting (Pages 139 - 140)
To note that the next scheduled meeting is Monday 26 May 2021.

Mark O'Callaghan
Scuriny and Engagement Officer
Tel:
(01892) 554219
Email: mark.ocallaghan@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Town Hall
ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS
Kent TN1 1RS

Watch Live
Watch this meeting live via the Council’s website.
Archived recordings of previous meetings are also available.
Visit www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts
mod.gov app – go paperless
Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your
mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!
Visit . www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp

Page 2

During the Coronavirus outbreak, and the recovery which follows, the way we conduct
meetings will change. This page summarises the process. If you have any questions
please contact Democratic Services via the contact details on the previous page.
Attending meetings
Meetings will not be held in the town hall, instead they will be held virtually using video
conferencing and webcast live online.
Any member of the public may watch/listen to the meetings online live via our website on the
relevant committee’s meeting page. A recording of the meeting will also be available shortly
after the end of the meeting.
All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is being
discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the meeting is
not open to the public and explain why.
Speaking at meetings
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an
agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. Registration opens
when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting.
There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each.
Once registered, speakers may submit their comments in writing to Democratic Services no
later than 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. Your comments will then be read
during the meeting by an independent officer. Alternatively, speakers may join the meeting
online or by telephone. Speakers will need to provide contact details and the clerk will provide
joining instructions to enable them to speak.
Comments should be in the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members of
the committee may not answer questions or get into a debate with you.
Further details are available on the website or from Democratic Services:
https://democracy.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

If you require this information in another format
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email
committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

Presiding Member
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To elect a member of the committee to preside over the meeting.

Page

1 of 1

Page 5

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Presiding Member

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Apologies for Absence
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To receive any apologies for absence.

Page

1 of 1

Page 7

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Apologies for Absence

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Declarations of Interest
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please
contact the Monitoring Office before the meeting.

Page

1 of 1

Page 9

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Declarations of Interest

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Notification of Persons Registered to
Speak
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to speak, of which due
notice has been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which
item(s) they wish to speak on.

Information for members of the public wishing to speak
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an
agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. Registration opens
when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting.
There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each.
Once registered, speakers may submit their comments in writing to Democratic Services no
later than 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. Your comments will then be read
during the meeting by an independent officer.
Alternatively, speakers may join the meeting online or by telephone. Speakers will need to
provide contact details and the clerk will provide joining instructions to enable them to speak.
Comments should be in the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members
of the committee may not answer questions or get into a debate with you.

Page

1 of 1

Page 11

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Notification of Persons Registered to Speak

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
1
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 24 November 2020
Present:
Councillors Reilly (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Backhouse, Bland, Everitt, Ms Palmer,
Rands, Warne, Mackonochie, Edwards, Quigley and Turner
Officers in Attendance: Jayne Bolas (Principal Solicitor Contentious and Corporate
Governance), David Candlin (Head of Economic Development and Property), Rich Clarke
(Head of Audit Partnership), Lee Colyer (Director of Finance, Policy and Development
(Section 151 Officer)), Gary Rowland (Senior Lawyer Mid Kent Legal) and Emer Moran
(Democratic Services Officer)
Other Members in Attendance: Councillors Dawlings, Hayward and Pound
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION
AG27/20

The Chairman opened the meeting, introduced Committee members and
officers in attendance, and outlined procedural matters of the meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
AG28/20

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Barrington-King.
Apologies were also received from Sarah Ironmonger and Ade Oyerinde from
Grant Thornton.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
AG29/20

No declarations of interest were received.

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18):
AG30/20

Dr. Robert Banks registered to speak on agenda item AG34/20.
Councillors Hayward and Dawlings registered to speak on agenda item
AG34/20 and Councillor Pound registered to speak on agenda item AG35/20.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE DATED
15 SEPTEMBER 2020
AG31/20

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 15
September 2020 were submitted.
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee
dated 15 September 2020 be approved as a correct record.

STRATEGIC RISK REVIEW
AG32/20

Mr Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development introduced the
report and introduced the Risk Owner David Candlin, Head of Economic
Development and Property.
Mr Candlin gave a detailed update on Risk Scenario 2: Economic

Page 13

Agenda Item 5
2
Development and Vitality; which set out the strategic risks identified by the
Council and currently being managed and tracked by senior management.
The report provided a current update on the evaluated threat level and
controls in place for each risk issue.
Members of the Committee took account of the report and raised a number of
questions and issues within their discussions. Points raised included:
• Short term plans for the town centre and across the borough
included the reinforcement of social distancing measures and
environmental health worked with businesses to ensure they were
Covid-19 secure.
• Retailers had indicated their wish to remain open for longer hours.
• It was advised that it was necessary to wait and find out the tier
that the borough would be placed in.
• An explanation of the Emergency Active Travel Scheme was given
and details of what this included such as the creation of more foot
space for pedestrians in the high street in Tunbridge Wells.
• It was advised that the BID had worked with other partners on a
work local and shop local approach to the town centre.
RESOLVED:
1. That the risk management report and the arrangements for
managing strategic risk, be noted.
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
AG33/20

Mr Rich Clarke, Head of Internal Audit Partnership (Mid Kent) presented his
report which outlined how the Audit and Governance Committee had
effectively discharged its duties during 2019/20. The report provided
assurance to the Council that important internal control, governance and risk
management issues were being monitored and addressed by the Committee.
The report sought to provide additional assurance to support the Annual
Governance Statement.
Members of the Committee took account of the report and raised a number of
questions and issues within their discussions. Points raised included:
• The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) recently published a Local
Audit Inspection Report, which did not include Tunbridge Wells
Council was discussed. Further clarification regarding the report
can be sought from the external Auditors at the next A&G meeting.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Audit & Governance Committee Annual Report for
2019/20 (appendix A), be agreed.
2. That the Chairman of the Audit & Governance Committee presents
the report to a future meeting of the Full Council to demonstrate
how the Committee has discharged its duties.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OF CANCELLED CALVERLEY SQUARE PROJECT
AG34/20

This agenda item was added by Councillor Reilly to provide a verbal update
on his meeting with the Council’s External Auditors following their

Page 14

Agenda Item 5
3
Independent Value for Money and Governance Review on Calverley Square
(CS).
In view of the issues raised Councillor Reilly proposed a verbal
recommendation to use the External Auditor’s report as a catalyst to set up a
Working Group to incorporate the learnings from Calverley Square into a best
practice guidance document. This document could then provide a clear
framework to bring together strategic project assessment, project
management, appraisal, sanction, and post auditing disciplines for future
major projects work within this Council.
The working group to be made up of Members with professional project
management, appraisal, and accounting expertise.
Dr. Banks registered to speak and made the following points:
• He had welcomed the decision to commission an independent
audit on the CS project.
• Concerned with the lack of public consultation and higher costs of
the project.
• A broader review was needed to act as a template for all future
major capital projects.
Councillor Hayward registered to speak and made the following points:
• Attended the meeting with Grant Thornton on 21st September
2020 to further discuss the Independent Audit of CS.
• The review did not meet his requirements.
• Lack of transparency with CS rendered the governance and
scrutiny pointless.
• Welcomed the idea for a Working Panel to look at this.
Councillor Dawlings registered to speak and made the following points:
• Accepted the three high-level recommendations of the
independent external review on CS.
• There was a financial imperative to address the significant
budgetary costs of the Town and Assembly Halls.
• It was important to Maintain Member and public support
throughout the political cycles for major projects.
• As portfolio holder a small team would be assembled to address
the issues raised for major projects going forward and welcomed
the suggestion from Councillor Reilly to join that group along with
the Independent Member Mr Quigley.
There was no officer report to this item and Councillor Reilly led the
discussion:
Members took account of the verbal update and raised several questions and
issues within their discussion, these included:
• Members newly appointed in May 2019 felt that they did
understand the issues of the CS project.
• The comment was made that it was important not to allocate
blame but to use the working group as a way to move forward and
plan for the future.
• CS followed the RIBA Stages for Major Projects and doing nothing
was not an option.
• There was a failure to adequately communicate the benefits of the
CS project to the wider community.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
4
•
•
•

Members expressed they were unsatisfied with the amount of
notice given to the Committee to discuss and form a decision.
The Amelia Scott Project should be used as a practical example
rather than more backward-looking reviews.
In principle Members were agreeable to the working party as
proposed by Councillor Reilly however it was suggested that the
party had political balance.

RESOLVED: That the Committee agreed for Councillor Reilly and
Independent Member Tony Quigley to support the Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Governance as sponsor in developing a framework for major
projects going forward and other additional nominations from other political
groups to be made for consideration by 4 December 2020.
UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED UNDER THE MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT
AG35/20

Mr Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance), presented his
report which provided an update on complaints received under the Members’
Code of Conduct in the period 1 September 2020 to 13 November 2020.
Since publication of the report Mr Rowland advised of an amendment to the
figures quoted in the response to question one in paragraph 3.5 of the report:
• Whilst there were complaints received for seven different subject
Members, complaints were received against 3 parish councillors
not 2 as stated in the report.
• Whilst there were complaints submitted by 4 members of the
public, complaints were submitted by 4 borough Councillors and
not 2 as stated in the report.
Councillor Pound registered to speak and raised the following points:
• On 16 September 2020 all Members received a high priority email
from Democratic Services which stated they were required to
attend Code of Conduct (COC) training.
• The statement “members are required to attend one of the
following virtual training sessions” implied that the training was
mandatory.
• 41 Members attended the training and 6 did not.
• Would further training be provided for the 6 Members who did not
attend the initial training sessions?.
• Would the Committee seek assurances that all Members made
reasonable endeavours to attend?
Members of the Committee took account of the report and raised a number of
questions and issues within their discussions. Points raised included:
• It was confirmed that the COC training required Member
attendance. However, a number of Members legitimately could not
attend the arranged sessions due to other commitments.
• The Monitoring Officer (MO) would continue to monitor the training
needs of all members.
• It was acknowledged that currently the majority of complaints were
resolved on an informal basis.
• Members were reminded that the Model Code of Conduct was
currently being revised by the Local Government Association
(LGA) and would be reviewed initially by the County Council
before being moved to district levels.

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
5
•
•
•

•
•

Members felt that the recent COC training was excellent.
It was advised that it would be too easy to identify a person should
the political party that they belonged to be named.
It was emphasised that Members need to recognise that the
highest standards of COC are needed to protect the integrity of the
Council, maintain public confidence and safeguard public
democracy.
The slides and training material would be sent to all members who
did not attend the COC training.
Further questions relating to the COC report need to be forwarded
to the MO directly.

RESOLVED:
1. That the update on complaints received under the Members’ Code
of Conduct, be noted.
FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME AS AT 10 NOVEMBER 2020
AG36/20

The Committee’s work programme was presented for members’ information.
RESOLVED – That the Future Work Programme as at 10 November 2020,
be noted.

URGENT BUSINESS
AG37/20

There was no urgent business for consideration.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 30 MARCH 2021
AG38/20

The next meeting was scheduled for Tuesday 30 March 2021.

NOTE: The meeting concluded at 8.29 pm.

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

External Audit Progress Report
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Summary
Lead Member: All
Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development
Head of Service: Rich Clarke, Head of Audit Partnership
Report Author: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development
Classification: Public document (non-exempt)
Wards Affected: All
Approval Timetable
Management Board
Audit and Governance Committee

Date
24 March 2021
30 March 2021

Recommendations
Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder:
1. That the committee consider and agree the external audit plan.

Page

1 of 4

Page 19

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
External Audit Progress Report

Agenda Item 6

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary
1.1 This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with an update from the
external auditors on progress in delivering their responsibilities.

2. Introduction and Background
2.1

The attached report provides an update from the Appointed Auditor, Grant Thornton
UK LLP on the progress of their work and updates to the Code of Practice including.
•
•
•

2.2

Progress in delivering the external auditor responsibilities.
Audit Plan 2020/21; and
Updated guidance on Value for Money arrangements.

This report provides the pubic with assurance from the external auditors work that
public funds are being correctly accounted for and safeguarded.

3. Options Considered
3.1

The Audit and Governance Committee could choose not to receive progress reports
from the Appointed Auditor.

4. Preferred Option and Reason
4.1

The Audit and Governance continues to receive and have regard to, progress reports
from the independent external auditors in accordance with the principles of good
governance.

5. Consultation on Options
5.1

Page

2 of 4

Reports from the Appointed Auditor are produced in accordance with the Professional
Code and when published stand as a matter of public record to which significant
weight is attached.

Page 20

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
External Audit Progress Report

Agenda Item 6
6. Appendices and Background Documents
Appendices:
•

Appendix A: External Audit Plan 2020/21

•

Appendix B: Auditor Guidance Note on Value for Money Arrangements

Background Papers:
•

None

7. Cross Cutting Issues
A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act)
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to have a sound
system of control which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
This Report is part of those arrangements and is designed to ensure that the
appropriate controls are effective.
There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

B. Finance and Other Resources
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

C. Staffing
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

D. Risk Management
Risk management is the subject of the report, but it does not of itself raise new risk issues for
consideration.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

Page

3 of 4

Page 21

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
External Audit Progress Report

Agenda Item 6
E. Environment and Sustainability
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

F. Community Safety
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

G. Equalities
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

H. Data Protection
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

I. Health and Safety
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

J. Health and Wellbeing
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

Page

4 of 4

Page 22

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
External Audit Progress Report

Page 23

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 24

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 25
•
•

•

•

•

•

Appendix A

•

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 26

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

Page 27

•

•

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

Page 28

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 29

•
•

•

•
•

•

Appendix A

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

Page 30

•

•
•
•

•
•

•

Appendix A

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•

Page 31

•
•
•

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 32

•
•
•
•

•

•

Appendix A

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 33

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 34
•
•

•
•
•
•

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 35

•
•

•

•

•
–

–
–
•

Appendix A

–

Commercial in confidence

Council prior year Cost of Service
expenditure
£74.8m

Materiality
£1.4m
Council financial
statements materiality
(PY: £1.4m)

£70k
Council misstatements
reported to the Audit
and Governance
Committee
(PY: £70k)

Page 36

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 37
•

•

•

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 38
•

•

•

Appendix A

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 39
•

•

•

Appendix A

•

•
•
•
17

Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

Page 40

•

Appendix A

Ethical Standard (revised
2019)

Commercial in confidence

.

Page 41

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 42

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 43

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 44

Appendix A

Commercial in confidence

Page 45

Appendix A

Page 46

Appendix A

Page 47

Value for money
Update for Audit Committee
on new arrangements 2020-21

Appendix B

Commercial in confidence

How have the NAO changed value for money work ?

Page 48

Appendix B

2

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in confidence

How is value for money work changing ?

Page 49

More
meaningful
and timely
reporting

Maximising
the value
from
auditor’s
work

More
freedom to
reflect local
context
Appendix B

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations
3

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in confidence

The three criteria have changed…

Page 50
© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Governance

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Financial
sustainability

Working with
partners and
other third
parties

Improving
economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness

Appendix B

4

Informed
decision making

Commercial in confidence

A key change in reporting…
Annual Audit
Letter
Page 51
5

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Appendix B

Auditor’s Annual
Report

Commercial in confidence

So what is in an Auditor’s Annual Report ?

Page 52

Commentary on
arrangements

Recommendations

Progress in
implementing
recommendations

Use of additional
powers

6

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Appendix B

Opinion on the
financial
statements

Commercial in confidence

Recommendations

Page 53

Nature of
weakness

Evidence
on which
auditor’s
view is
based

Impact of
weakness
on the
audited
body

Action to be
taken to
address the
weakness
Appendix B

7

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in confidence

Practical implications

The new approach is more complex, more involved and will
lead to better quality working achieving more impact. Before
beginning work, we will discuss with you:
Page 54

• Timing

• Fees
8

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Appendix B

• Resourcing

Commercial in confidence

Q&A

Page 55

Appendix B

9

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Strategic Risk Register
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Summary
Lead Member: All
Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development
Head of Service: Rich Clarke, Head of Audit Partnership
Report Author: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development
Classification: Public document (non-exempt)
Wards Affected: All
Approval Timetable
Management Board
Audit and Governance Committee

Date
10 March 2021
30 March 2021

Recommendations
Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder:
1. That the Committee notes the risk management report and arrangements for
managing strategic risk.

Page

1 of 5

Page 57

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Register

Agenda Item 7

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary
1.1 This report sets out the strategic risks identified by the Council and currently being
managed and tracked by senior management. The report provides a current update on
the evaluated threat level and controls in place for each risk issue.

2. Introduction and Background
2.1

The risks included in the report were developed in a risk management workshop and
health check facilitated by Zurich Insurance Limited on 25 March 2019, with the risks
being formally adopted by Cabinet on 1 August 2019. Since that time, risk owners
have kept the risks and controls under review with periodic reporting both to the
Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.

2.2

The Council’s Management Board periodically reviews the risks identified along with
the risk owners.

2.3

Risk owners (managers) for certain risks are invited to attend the Audit and
Governance Committee meetings to outline the Council’s approach to managing their
particular risk(s). The meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be able to
examine the risk(s) owned by William Benson, Chief Executive, namely;

•
•
•

Risk 5: National policy changes in short term that impact negatively on TWBC;
Risk 7: Capacity fails to keep pace with ambition; and
Risk 11: Pandemic

3. Options Considered
3.1

There is no legal requirement on the authority formally to monitor its risks, still less is
there a defined framework to do so. Although failing to monitor and record risks will
leave the Council vulnerable to external criticism – for example by its external auditors
who are required to assess the effectiveness of risk management when considering
their annual Value For Money conclusion – the Council could decide that is a price
worth paying against using some of its resources to identify and monitor risk.

3.2

Even accepting the utility in gathering systematic monitoring information on the risks it
faces, there is a wide range of different approaches the Council might adopt. Even if
one looks solely at the local government sector, there are myriad formats, structures
and arrangements adopted to record and present information to senior officers and
members.

Page

2 of 5

Page 58

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Register

Agenda Item 7
4. Preferred Option and Reason
4.1

The report sets out the risks using the methodology and format previously agreed by
the Council, which is essentially the method advocated by Zurich from the 2019 risk
workshop

5. Consultation on Options
5.1

The Strategic Risk Register has undergone periodic review and examination by the
Council’s Management Board, the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.
This stands in addition to ongoing monitoring by the identified risk owners. This report
incorporates feedback and updates from all sources.

6. Appendices and Background Documents
Appendices:
•

Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register Update March 2021

Background Papers:
•

None

7. Cross Cutting Issues
A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act)
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to have a sound
system of control which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
This Report is part of those arrangements and is designed to ensure that the
appropriate controls are effective.
There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

B. Finance and Other Resources
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

Page

3 of 5

Page 59

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Register

Agenda Item 7
C. Staffing
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

D. Risk Management
Risk management is the subject of the report, but it does not of itself raise new risk issues for
consideration.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

E. Environment and Sustainability
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

F. Community Safety
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

G. Equalities
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

H. Data Protection
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

I. Health and Safety
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

Page

4 of 5

Page 60

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Register

Agenda Item 7
J. Health and Wellbeing
None identified at this stage.
Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development

Page

5 of 5

Page 61

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Register

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Strategic Risks
The Strategic Risk Profile chart below shows each risk scored onto the risk matrix graph. The
further towards the top right-hand corner the greater the risk to the Council. The chart below
provides only a snapshot on a particular date.
The risk scenarios are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

CSR01: Cyber attack / incident
CSR02: Economic development and vitality
CSR03: Contract management and delivery
CSR04: Unable to plan financially over the longer-term
CSR05: National policy changes in short term that negatively impact on TWBC
CSR06: Service Interruption
CSR07: Capacity fails to keep pace with ambitions
CSR08: Local plan adoption – housing
CSR09: The Amelia Scott
CSR10: Climate Change
CSR11: Pandemic
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Strategic Risk Profile

March 2021

5

CSR 03

Likelihood
5 = Almost Certain
4 = Likely
3 = Possible
2 = Unlikely
1 = Remote

CSR 02
CSR 05
CSR 09
CSR 11
CSR 04
CSR 06
CSR 07
CSR 08
CSR 10

4
Likelihood

3

Impact
5+ Catastrophic
4 = Major
3 = Moderate
2 = Minor
1 = Minimal

CSR 01

2

1

1

2

3

Impact

Page 63

4

5

The table below tracks movement in the identified strategic risk areas.
Risk
Ref

Title

CSR 01

Cyber attack/ incident

CSR 02

Economic development and vitality

CSR 03

Contract management and delivery

CSR 04

Unable to plan financially over the longer
term.

CSR 05

National policy changes in short term impact
negatively on TWBC and direction.

Page 64

Service Interruption

CSR 07

Capacity fails to keep pace with ambitions

CSR 08

Local plan adoption - housing

CSR 09

The Amelia Scott

CSR 10

Climate Emergency

CSR 11

Pandemic

September 2020

November 2020

March 2021

Trend

12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
8
(4 x Lk, 2 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
8
(2 x Lk, 4 x Im)
12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)

12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
15
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)

12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
15
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)

12
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
15
(5 x Lk, 3 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)
16
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im)
20
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im)

➔
➔


➔

➔


Appendix A

CSR 06

June 2020

➔
➔

Risk Scenario 1: Cyber-attack / incident
Risk Description:
A successful cyber-attack or cyber incident
which causes significant disruption to ability
to deliver services
Member Risk
Cllr Dawlings
Owner
Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Current Likelihood/ Impact

Possible (3) /Major (4)

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Unlikely (2) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

Chris Woodward

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/Actions

Page 65

•

Increased threat from cyber security
attacks

•

•

Ever increasing reliance on digital systems
for virtually all Council activities and
services

•
•

•

Data increasingly held in electronic format,
not on hard copy paper records

•
•

•

Robustness of IT Disaster recovery
arrangements

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Designation of a Senior Information Risk Officer
Public Service Network accreditation
Support from the National Centre for Cyber
Security (part of GCHQ)
Continuation of cyber awareness campaign - Q2
Upgrade to current backup technology Q3
Installation of Cortex XDR security agents on all
home& office devices
Cyber security testing & training
Darktrace AI based cyber immune system
Nessus scanning software reporting daily on
system vulnerabilities
Implementation of Next Gen firewall
Effective backup technology
ICT policies & staff training, including disaster
recovery plan

Appendix A

Systems offline for a period of
time
Loss of data
Impacting on the ability of
Tunbridge to deliver services
Service disruption/failure
Dissatisfied customers – not
meeting customer expectations
Data compromised / lost
Safeguarding and data
protection issues
Financial impact –potential fine
and cost of rectifying

Risk Scenario 2: Economic development and vitality
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Almost Certain (5) / Major (4)

Tunbridge Wells not seen as a destination
of choice for retailers / consumers /
employers

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Possible (3) / Moderate (3)

Officer Risk Owner

David Candlin

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•
•
•
•

•

Member Risk
Owner

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Lose out to other areas
Impact on economic vitality of area
Large scale property vacancy
Major redefinition of public realm
space
Unable to secure sufficient
opportunities
Local area and people lose out
Insufficient inward investment
Potential for knock on effects
Curtails attractiveness
Significant and ongoing impact on
revenue streams and income (inc.
business rates and car parking)
Housing not built
More vulnerable to appeal around
Local Plan. Reduced control on
environment to meet Covid-19
recovery plans
Impact on staff recruitment and
retention
Damage to reputation as a place
for investment

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Work with Kent County Council and the Kent Resilience
Forum on Covid-19
Delivering Covid-19 reopening plan with business partners
across borough
Delivery of amendments to road network to encourage
walking and cycling
Work with Royal Tunbridge Wells Together Business
Improvement District including promoting Royal Tunbridge
Wells
RVP refurbishment completed and discussion on future RVP
redevelopment
Deliver out the Amelia Scott
Ensure Local Plan and Transport Strategy address changes
to the economy & transportation post Covid-19 including
future office demand
Lobby with partners and stakeholders (including SELEP) to
minimise negative impact of Brexit terms and for additional
support for Covid-19
Secure KMEP and SELEP support for delivery of key
infrastructure improvements
Monitor Brexit negotiations and terms impacting on the local
economy and business sectors in the Borough
Support for community facilities in the rural towns
Work with West Kent partners to update and promote key
economic development priorities
Review and revise existing approved Economic
Development Strategy in the post Covid-19 world

Appendix A

Global Pandemic (Covid-19) closing the
economy and restricting public
movements
Competition for economic opportunities
from other areas
Longer term High Street and retail decline
over last 18 months
Significant change in nature of high street
due to Covid-19 – including accelerated
shift to online and ‘experience’
Significant change in office working
practices and reduced daily market
Reimpose local restrictions for Covid-19
due to infection spikes
Historic centre with restricted pavement
space to meet new covid-19 challenges
Redevelopment of RVP to provide an
improved offer
Ongoing infrastructure issues, particularly
traffic congestion affecting opportunities
The implications of Brexit, possible No
Deal, and wider economic impacts with
the potential to have a significant impact
on the local economy
Lack of ambition and ability of the Council
to deliver infrastructure and growth

Page 66

•

Cllr March

•

Maintain and develop working relationships with key
partners, landowners & developers

Page 67

Appendix A

Risk Scenario 3: Contract management and delivery
Current Likelihood/Impact

Almost Certain (5) / Moderate (3)

Council unable to source contractor to deliver
service within financial parameters / existing
provider(s) ceases to provide service

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Unlikely (2) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

Gary Stevenson

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•

•

Contract supervision by TWBC

•

Contract terms requiring contractor to evidence
supervision and performance

•

Reporting of performance and service

•

Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group
established to assist in the development of the Grounds
Maintenance contract and specification

•

Temporary increase in resources were in place during
mobilisation of new recycling service and an
improvement plan put in place. Additional permanent
resource to contract manage including garden waste
subscriptions, which exceeded projections

•

Collective working with other clients of service providers

•

Monitoring of marketplace

•

Exploring to provision of additional transitional financial
support to Leisure contractor (Fusion) whilst exploring
future options for providing the service.

•

Advice is being sought with partnering authority to
ensure delivery of waste service.

Member Risk
Owner

•

Page 68

•

•

•

Cllr March

The Council has several long-term external
contracts which are due to tender within the
near future, specifically Grounds Maintenance
(201920/21) and Sports Centres (2021/22).
There are long-term financial parameters
within which these contracts need to be let
and delivered to.
Short-term impact on the Councils Leisure
contractor and there is the potential for
significant changes in the leisure market due
to impact Covid-19
The Council is accountable and has
responsibility for delivery of these services,
even where they are delivered with or through
3rd party organisations.
The new recycling and waste contract
involved the most fundamental change to the
service for circa 25 years and is being
delivered with a neighbouring authority.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Services disrupted or below agreed
standards
Complaints
Adverse publicity and media
Potential for Contractor withdrawal
or failure
Potential service failure
Disruption to services with business
continuity arrangements required
Required to re-tender at short notice
Additional capacity and resources
required at short notice
Knock on implications on other
activities.
Loss of public confidence in waste
and recycling service.
Reduction in completion and
negative change in financial terms
in forthcoming procurements
Potential short-term closure of
Leisure centres

Appendix A

Risk Description:

Risk Scenario 4: Unable to plan financially over the longer term
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Likely (4) / Major (4)

Longer term financial planning – risk of
change adverse to plan of more than £1m
across the medium term

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Possible (3) / Moderate (3)

Officer Risk Owner

Lee Colyer

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•
•
•
•
•

•

Member Risk
Owner

Page 69
•

•
•

•

The financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic
has seen a collapse of income streams with
additional expenditure incurred as a result of
the emergency (e.g. setting up and operation
of community hub facilities) and the expansion
of other services to deal with the emergency
(e.g. increase in temporary accommodation
need and council tax support).
Local Government is expected to play a vital
role in the recovery stage to get the local
economy up and running and to support the
community in addition to responding to further
waves of the pandemic.
Revenue Support Grant remains at zero as
the Government favours incentive-based
schemes reliant on growth and for council’s to
be financially self-sufficient.
No funding settlement in place for Local
Government beyond the current year.
This Council’s income is below that of
neighbouring councils and is not sufficient to
meet expenditure pressures. There is now a
£3 million budget gap for 2022/23.
Property costs consume a disproportionate
amount of the available budget.

A significant in-year funding gap
Depletion of reserves
Serious cash-flow issues
Unable to set a balanced budget
The financial viability of Local
Government and the collapse of
local services

•
•
•

•
•
•
•

The council’s starting position was sound with healthy
reserves, no external debt, a balanced budget and a
long track record of clean audit letters.
An in-year revised revenue budget permitted the
controlled use of reserves.
The budget for 2021/22 was agreed by Full Council
along with the controlled use of reserves.
The Section 25 Statement made clear that the drain on
reserves from property assets is unsustainable and the
Council must determine which assets are required and
fit for purpose and those which should be sold or
redeveloped.
A new Medium-Term Financial Strategy will be
developed from 2022/23.
The Council will continue to lobby government for
substantial, reliable financial support to manage the
local consequences of Covid-19.
The Council will continue to lobby government for
financial flexibility and freedoms for councils to fund
local services and make more decisions locally.
A cross party working group was established in 2019 to
provide a political solution to the open-ended drain on
the council finances from the property estate. This is
now more pressing given the change in working

Appendix A

•

Cllr Dawlings

practices and the impact on the local economy from the
pandemic.

Risk Scenario 5: National policy changes in short term that impact negatively on TWBC
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Significant legislative or decision-making
changes often with little notice adversely
impact on the delivery of services and
strategic planning.
Member Risk
Owner

Possible (3) / Minor (2)
Target Likelihood/ Impact

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•

•

Flexibility encouraged amongst staff

•

Partnership working presents opportunities to
collaborate on service delivery and address constraints
on capacity

•

Engagement with the LGA, SOLACE, central
government and parish councils

•

Work with Kent County Council and other Kent
councils on these issues

•

Proactive work with representative bodies

•

Before the Covid-19 Pandemic, this risk
stemmed from the significant changes to the
public sector environment and regulations that
govern it over the past few years, the
uncertainty caused by Brexit and changes to
ministerial positions in government.
The Covid Pandemic and the government’s
response to it has caused significant issues
for the Council – alongside the need to
redeploy staff to maintain its own operations it
has had to respond to requests/requirements
from government to respond to the crisis
(including the provision of grants to local
businesses and the establishment of a ‘hub’
and contact centre to support the shielded,
vulnerable and isolated population).
This situation looks set to endure and the
Council is almost certainly going to be
required to provide support to the vulnerable
and to be involved in issues such as contact

•

•

•
•

An inability to balance the budget
arising from a catastrophic loss of
income or failure to make difficult
decsions.
Long-term requirements on the
Council to manage and resource
both a response to the pandemic
and the recovery programme as we
emerge from ‘lockdown’
Unpredictable and frequent
changes required to Council
operations and policy/ funding
assumptions
Significant work required to respond
and address any gaps
Increased and unplanned
requirement for resources and
finances

Appendix A

William Benson

Page 70

Officer Risk Owner

•

Cllr McDermott

Almost Certain (5) / Major (4)

•
•
•

Increased costs/reduced income
Lack of certainty on policy direction
and finance
An impact on the Council’s Local
Plan and housing targets (see Risk
8)

Page 71

tracing and the enforcement of social
distancing rules in the workplace.
• As the end of the year draws closer, Kent
partners will also need to respond to issues
that arise as we near the end of the transition
period on Brexit.
• In addition to Covid-19 and Brexit, there are
two further national policy changes that have
the potential to have a significant impact on
the Borough namely a White Paper on
Recovery and Devolution which may press for
some form of local government reorganisation
and proposed changes to the planning
system. The changes to planning are set out
under Risk 8 and any changes arising from
the White Paper will be integrated into the
Risk Register once it is published.
• Significant policy changes impact on the
Council’s ability to plan or make decisions.

Appendix A

Risk Scenario 6: Service Interruption
Current Likelihood/Impact

Likely (4) / Major (4)

A major incident occurs which causes
significant disruption to ability to deliver
services

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Unlikely (2) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

Denise Haylett

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

Increased frequency of extreme weather

•

Interruption to critical services

•

Business Continuity Plan

•

Increased threats from terrorism

•

Potential service failure

•

Major Emergency Plan

•

Fire and other major events

•

•

Resilience through partnership working

•

Robustness and relevance of business
continuity and emergency planning
arrangements in an ever-changing threat
environment

Staff being pulled in different
directions

•

•

Part of the Multi-Agency Agreement

Robustness of arrangements
potentially questioned / challenged

•

Member of the Kent Resilience Forum

•

Claims/Legal action/Compensation

•

Review of Emergency Planning arrangements

•

Adverse publicity

•

www.kentprepared.org.uk

•

National and local reputation
affected

•

Financial loss

•

Exposure to fraud, ransom and
denial of service

•

Potential government intervention

•

Staff absentees

Member Risk
Owner

Cllr McDermott

Page 72

•

Possible impact from Brexit in respect of
supply chain and labour disruption

•

Capacity is stretched due to Coronavirus
which will impact on ability to deal with other
events.

Appendix A

Risk Description:

Risk Scenario 7: Capacity fails to keep pace with ambition
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Likely (4) / Major (4)

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Unlikely (2) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

William Benson

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•

•

Risk that capacity fails to keep pace with ambition
Member Risk
Owner

Page 73

•
•

•
•

The Council has reduced staff numbers and
resources but is under pressure to do more with even
less money. With no government grant, the Council
relies on income to deliver services and some of
these income streams are being challenged as being
detrimental to the local economy (e.g. Business
Rates and car parking)
The local community has high expectations and is
demanding when service delivery in interrupted or
changed.
Whilst this risk originally stemmed from the Council’s
significant agenda of projects and major capital
programme, the Council will now have to re-assess
its ambitions in light of revised political priorities, its
response to the Covid-19 pandemic and its available
staff and financial resources.
The Council’s Five-Year Plan will need to be updated
when time and circumstances permit.
Both projects and the Covid-19 response place
particular reliance on a number of key people and
teams within the Council.
High expectations of residents set against
constrained resources

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Personal impacts – stress,
burnout, loss of wellbeing
Impact on morale
Reliance on key and fewer
people
Unavailability / loss of key staff
Impact on key projects and / or
day to day delivery
Services/staff are stretched
Impact on service quality
Satisfaction diminished
Major programme / projects not
delivered as expected
Adverse publicity
Political impact
Damage to reputation
Loss of confidence from the
private sector and partner
organisations.

•
•
•
•
•
•

Regular consideration by Management Board of
resources; additional resources put in place to
support priorities (including additional resources to
support the Council’s property section)
Introduction of a Programme Management Office to
oversee priority projects
Appropriate use of external capacity and expertise
Performance monitoring to identify pressure points
Improving resilience through partnerships
Adopting an ‘enabling’ approach to encourage
community to deliver local services
Work with all political groups to establish a revised
set of priorities going forward at an appropriate time.

Appendix A

•

Cllr McDermott

Risk Scenario 8: Local Plan adoption – housing
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Likely (4) / Major (4)

Local Plan not adopted effectively, and
housing not delivered in right areas / types

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Possible (3) / Moderate (3)

Officer Risk Owner

Stephen Baughen

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Action

•
•

•

•

Member Risk
Owner

•
•

Page 74

•

•
•

•

Resistance to housing growth locally
Having to meet significantly increased needs
in a constrained environment (green belt /
AONB / flooding / transport infrastructure)
Public opposition to particular proposed
allocation sites
Requests to accommodate “unmet” need from
neighbouring authorities with similar/greater
areas of constraint
The views of the Planning Inspector on
neighbouring authorities whose draft local
plans do not meet the housing target levels
are relevant to this Council
Judicial Review of decisions
Results of the housing delivery test, which has
punitive measures for under-delivery
There is a risk of speculative planning
applications/appeals, particularly on those
sites not proposed for allocation in the Draft
Local Plan/ Pre-Submission Version Local
Plan. Risk increased whilst Council cannot
demonstrate a five-year supply of
housing/failure to meet the housing delivery
test
The potential changes, increased uncertainty
and consequential impact on service
operation and delivery, associated with the
Government’s consultations on national
changes to the planning system (autumn

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Significant new costs to support production
of revised Local Plan if delayed, or rejected
by an Inspector at Examination
Long term delays to Local Plan production
could see Secretary of State intervention.
Until Local Plan is adopted, likely increase in
level of housing on unallocated greenfield
sites
Risk of “viscous cycle” of planning by appeal
potentially leading to loss of local decision
making ultimately Council loses control of
situation
Potential significant appeal related costs
following refusal of major residential
development
Member and community dissatisfaction
Legal consequences
Lack of affordable housing delivery
Affordability gap gets worse
Financial benefit of planned growth –
opportunity impact
Increased traffic congestion
Impact on infrastructure
Potential significant legal fees/officer
costs/loss of section 106
Service delivery affected
Impact on staff recruitment and retention

•

•
•
•

•

•

Work on a new Local Plan progressing. Regulation
18 consultation is due to start soon.
Whilst the Local Plan is progressed, regard is being
had in determination of planning applications to need
to ensure a robust supply and delivery of housing and
employment floorspace. Has been a significant
increase in grants of planning permission which
means there is good progress towards being able to
identify a five-year supply of housing from summer
2021. It will then be important to maintain this going
forward.
Measures in place to ensure high levels of coordination between Planning Policy and Development
Management functions
Regular reporting to Planning Policy Working
Group/Cabinet member/ Planning Committee on risk
and legislative changes
Pre-Submission Local Plan indicates that level of long
term identified need can be met by a combination of
current supply, additional allocations and windfall
provision.
Ensuring regular and constructive Duty to Co-operate
meetings with neighbouring authorities, with
approach adapted to reflect Inspectors’ findings from
examination of other authorities’ Local Plans
Using the Planning Advisory Service and heeding the
views of the Inspectorate from neighbour’s draft plans

Appendix A

•

Cllr McDermott

2020) comprise significant (medium-long
term) additional vulnerability factors.

Page 75

Appendix A

Risk Scenario 9: The Amelia Scott
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Almost Certain (5) / Major (4)

The project not delivered to plan, budget and
benefits

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Possible (3) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

Paul Taylor

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•
•

•

Member Risk
Owner

•

Page 76

•
•
•

Delivering an integrated service that meets
the aspirations of all stakeholders e.g. KCC,
TWBC, HLF, Arts Council
Success of the project is dependent on
reaching a wider demographic
TWBC has the ‘financial risk’ and
management of delivery
Performance of consultants (cost consultant)
Significant economic climate and shocks
including Brexit and the Covid-19 pandemic
on delivery and procurement, and therefore
costs
Internal capacity to deliver
Non-delivery of funding strategy

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Time delay and cost over-run
Potentially loss of funding from HLF/Arts
Council
Reputational impacts
Relationship issue with TWBC and KCC
Impact of front-line service delivery
Impact of cost consultant and design team
errors on financial and budget management
Market impacts potential increased costs of all
project work streams
Unfunded “abnormal” costs due to contract
errors
Closure of site due to Covid-19
Change requests generate costs in terms of
design, fees, materials and works
Risk of disparity between new fit out design
and construction design

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•

•

Project Board, formal internal project
management structures in place and TWBC
Programme Board
TWBC Programme Board
Member engagement through ASMOP
Detailed funding strategy, Trust established,
and team appointed to raise funding for it.
Review of strategy due to pandemic impacts
Fit Out & Interpretation - market tested
procurement of sub-contractors and preliminary
sums
Project management and professional advisors
to the Council in place
Change control process for all workstreams in
place and changes reported to Board
Programme for future operations being
developed for the integrated services
Cost consultant weekly commercial review and
performance notice to address preliminary
sums and BoQ corrections
Contractor review of works/ secured supplies to
maintain defined construction programme and
observance of Covid-19 restrictions

Appendix A

•
•

Cllr March

•
•
•
•

•
•

Ongoing assessment of programme to address
current information/ Covid-19 restrictions
Detailed risk registers regularly reviewed and
updated
Regular engagement and reporting to HLF and
Arts Council
Full project review on workstreams, finances
and wider impacts being undertaken to report in
September to Cabinet/Full Council
Regular Fund-raising meetings in place with
Counter Culture
Additional funding bids in progress to ACE and
NHLF

Page 77

Appendix A

Risk Scenario 10: Climate Change
Risk Description:

Current Likelihood/Impact

Likely (4) / Major (4)

Climate Change is a global emergency and
solving it is beyond our capability. In
declaring a Climate Emergency, we are taking
a proactive approach and working towards
being carbon neutral by 2030. We are
addressing this risk through taking a strategic
approach whilst mitigating the impact and
adapting to the change.

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Likely (4) / Minor (2)

Officer Risk Owner

Paul Taylor

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions

•

•

Member Risk
Owner

Page 78

•

•

Severe weather is already affecting public
services across the UK, with operational,
reputational, financial and legal
consequences.
Climate change is expected to continue and
worsen in the future, with changes to mean
temperatures, the increasing frequency and
severity of storms and higher rainfall levels in
winter potentially causing rising water levels
and resulting in more flooding and coastal
erosion. Additionally, hotter drier summers,
with heat waves and reduced rainfall.
There is also an ongoing impact of severe
winter weather including snowfall and
freezing temperatures which impact service
delivery and the integrity of our roads open
space and buildings infrastructure.
National sustainability commitments may be
deferred or abandoned as an emphasis on

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Increased likelihood of flooding impacting on
properties
Kent at risk of water shortages/drought.
Extreme weather (heat and cold) impacting
vulnerable residents
Extreme weather having a greater impact on
the day to day delivery of services
Detrimental impact on the local environment
An increased frequency of severe weather
conditions may lead to more instances of
damage to Council infrastructure and
property.
Adverse impact on the local economy if
businesses are unable to operate.
Dissatisfaction amongst residents for not
meeting expectations

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Climate Emergency declared
Consultants engaged to carry out carbon audit
of Council services and to produce costed
action plan
Cross party Climate Emergency Advisory
Panel (CEAP) set up
Draft Local Plan Policies
Business Continuity and Emergency Plans in
place for severe weather
Adopted Kent Environment Strategy October
2016 (CAB98/16)
Air Quality Action Plan 2018 – 2023
Warm Homes programme – improved energy
efficiency (s106 approved)
Tackling fuel poverty – Fuel Poverty Strategy
Collective Solar – partnership with KCC
Energy Deal (not direct energy reduction but
aids cutting fuel costs) ongoing
Low carbon heating (e.g. Off – gas grid
homes/District heat network rollout)
Identify and maximise the opportunities for
change that will come from the experience of

Appendix A

•

Cllr Matthew Bailey

•

economic growth is prioritised post Covid-19.
A traditional recovery will be dirtier, less
efficient, harm economic growth and hinder
progress on environmental improvements.
Increase in private car use for commuting in
favour of public transport

Covid-19 restrictions such as green
infrastructure, including cycle lanes and
recognising the social infrastructure around
health and well-being, new ways of working,
which include less commuting, working from
and near home, accelerating digital
transformation to ensure adaptive capacity
and equity of access

Page 79

Appendix A

Risk Scenario 11: Pandemic
Risk Description:

Almost Certain (5) /Major (4)

Target Likelihood/ Impact

Almost Certain (5) /Moderate (3)

Officer Risk Owner

William Benson

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors

Potential Impact/ Consequences

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/Actions

•

•

•

Financial controls to monitor the Council’s revenue and
capital expenditure and cash flow and strong efforts to
lobby central government.

•

Ongoing dialogue with contractors and cross-sector
conversations with Government to raise the issue.

•

Work with KCC and other bodies to monitor
performance and outcomes and to put in place
measures to mitigate inequalities.

•

Work with the voluntary sector to assess and respond
to issues as they arise.

•

The establishment of a Covid-19 Panel including
politicians from all political groups and representatives
from business, resident associations, and the voluntary
and community sector to oversee the Council’s
approach to response and the recovery.

•

Impact assessments and action plans being worked up
to guide the recover for the local community,
businesses and the Council itself.

Longer-term impact of a pandemic on the
Borough and the local community/economy
Member Risk
Cllr McDermott
Owner

•

Page 80
•

In addition to risks identified in other strategic
risks there are longer-term vulnerabilities,
namely the possibility of a second ‘peak’ and
the Council/KRF having to move back into
‘Response Mode’ or running Recovery and
Response modes simultaneously.
As time passes, the likelihood of serious and
irreversible harm being inflicted on some
sectors of the community and economy will
increase significantly – some premises and
contractors will not be able to survive
(including Council-run facilities such as leisure
centres) and social and economic inequalities
will be exacerbated.
As time passes there is also the issue of the
Kent Resilience Forum having to handle the
potential consequences of the Pandemic and
the transition phase of Brexit simultaneously.

•

•
•

•
•
•

The Council no longer being solvent
and having to issue a S114 notice.
Contractors failing or invoking Force
Majeure clauses in contracts putting
additional costs and responsibilities
onto the Council.
Impact on the local economy and
consequentially on Business Rates.
Social and economic inequalities
widening with increased
unemployment, gaps in educational
attainment, issues with mental
health and wellbeing etc.
Increased dependency on relief
measures (including food banks and
the community hub).
Some charitable organisations
closing and not-reopening.
Fatigue amongst staff and key
partners.

Appendix A

Current Likelihood/ Impact

Agenda Item 8
Audit & Governance Committee

30 March 2021

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting?

Yes

Interim Internal Audit & Assurance Report
2020/21
Final Decision-Maker

Audit & Governance Committee

Portfolio Holder(s)

Councillor Tom Dawlings – Portfolio Holder for Finance and
Governance

Lead Director

Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy & Development
(Section 151 Officer)

Head of Service

Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership

Lead Officer/Author

Jen Warrillow – Audit Manager

Classification

Non-exempt

Wards affected

All

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker:
1. The Committee notes and comments as appropriate on progress against the internal
audit plan and findings so far.

This report is concerned with the internal control and governance of the Council.
Successful controls and effective governance are a crucial underpinning for all
objectives set out in the Five-Year Plan.

Timetable
Meeting

Date

Audit & Governance Committee

30 March 2021

Page 81

Agenda Item 8
Interim Internal Audit & Assurance Report
2020/21
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The report provides to Members and update on progress so far towards
completing the 2020/21 Internal Audit and Assurance Plan. It also provides the
update information needed by Audit Standards including an assessment of
available time, results of audit work and commentary on performance of the
audit service.
1.2 Our results so far in 2020/21 have yielded positive assurance ratings and there
are no matters of broader concern we wish to being to Members attention.

2.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1 The report provides an update for Members on progress against the 2020/21
Internal Audit & Assurance plan provided by this Committee in September 2020.
The report also meets our duties under the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standard 2060 to report to Members on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Our audit charter,
The independence of internal audit,
Audit plan changes and progress against the plan,
Resource needs of the audit service,
Results of audit work so far,
Affirming conformance with the Standards and Code of Ethics, and
Details of risks taken by management that, in the Head of Audit
Partnership’s judgement, may be unacceptable to the authority.

2.2 After a delayed start to the year due to the pandemic, we have made sound
progress through the plan so far. We will continue to adjust our plans according
to the Council’s risk profile and remain confident of delivering a robust audit
opinion by year end.
2.3 So far in 2020/21 we have delivered positive assurance ratings on all reviews
completed. Further, we report good levels of delivery for officers acting to
addressing audit recommendations.
2.4 We also report our continuing conformance with the Standards (including
independence) and the Code of Ethics.

Page 82

Agenda Item 8
3.

PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To keep conformance with the Standards we must report progress periodically
to Members. This report fulfils that duty and provides the opportunity for
Members to review, comment on and question the progress we have made and
the results we have reached.

4.

CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK

4.1 We discuss results of audit work with responsible officers within the authority
before issuing as final. We remain pleased to report to Members continuing
strong levels of co-operation from officers who have accepted all
recommendations made so far in 2020/21.
4.2 The report builds on Committee comments from previous similar reports at
equivalent points in earlier years.

5.

CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS
Issue
Legal including
Human Rights
Act
Finance and
other resources

Staffing
establishment

Risk
management

Implications
Reporting to Members in his way contributes
to fulfilling the Council’s duties under the
Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014.
Continuing the audit and assurance plan is
within already approved budgetary headings
and so needs no new funding for
implementation.
We will seek agreement for any new funding
to deal with the matters mentioned in the
report through the standard budgetary
approach of Maidstone BC (our host
authority) in consultation with Tunbridge Wells
BC.
We will continue completing the audit and
assurance plan with our current staffing.
We will seek agreement for any changes to
staffing resulting from the matters mentioned
in the report through the standard HR
approach of Maidstone BC (our host
authority) in consultation with Tunbridge Wells
BC.
We present this report for information only so
it has no direct risk management implications.
Audit Standard 2060 demands we report to
Members any risks accepted by management
that in our view may be unacceptable to the
organisation. For example, this might include

Page 83

Sign-off

Rich Clarke
Head of Audit
Partnership
22 March 2021

Agenda Item 8
Issue

Implications
audit recommendations that management
refuse to address.
There are no risks we have identified in our
work that we believe management have
unreasonably accepted.
Data Protection We handle data acquired in the course of
audit and other engagements in line with the
Council’s applicable policies.

6.

Environment
and
sustainability

The report makes no recommendations that
impact the environment and sustainability.

Community
safety

The report makes no recommendations that
impact community safety.

Health and
Safety

The report makes no recommendations that
impact health and safety.

Health and
wellbeing

The report makes no recommendations that
impact health and wellbeing.

Equalities

The report does not propose a change in
service therefore will not need an equalities
impact assessment

Sign-off

REPORT APPENDICES

The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report:
•

7.

Appendix A: Interim Internal Audit & Assurance Report 2020/21

BACKGROUND PAPERS

• None
__________________________________________________________________

Page 84

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT

Interim Internal Audit &
Assurance Report

March 2021
Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council

Page 85

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Introduction
1. The Institute of Internal Audit gives the mission of internal audit: to enhance and
protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice
and insight.
2. The mission and its associated code of ethics and Standards govern over 200,000
professionals in businesses and organisations around the world. Within UK Local
Government, authority for internal audit stems from the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015. The Regulations state services must follow the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards – an adapted and more demanding version of the global
standards. Those Standards set demands for our reporting:

Audit Charter
3. This Committee approved our Audit Charter in September 2019 and it remains in
place through the audit year.

Page 86

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Independence of internal audit
4. Mid Kent Audit works as a shared service between Ashford, Maidstone, Swale and
Tunbridge Wells Borough Councils. A Shared Service Board including representatives
from each council supervises our work based on our collaboration agreement.
5. Within Tunbridge Wells BC during 2020/21 we have continued to enjoy complete and
unfettered access to officers and records to complete our work. On no occasion have
officers or Members sought or gained undue influence over our scope or findings.
6. I confirm we have worked with full independence as defined in our Audit Charter and
Standard 1100.

Management response to risk
7. We include the results of our work in the year so far later in this report. In our work
we often raise recommendations for management action. During the year so far
management have agreed to act on all recommendations we have raised. We report
on progress towards implementation in the section titled Agreed Actions Follow Up
Results.
8. There are no risks we have identified in our work that we believe management have
unreasonably accepted.

Resource Need
9. We reported in our plan presented to this Committee in March 2020 an assessment
on the resources available to the audit partnership for completing work at the
Council. That review decided:
…we believe we have enough resource to deliver the 2020/21 plan
10. Since that plan we, and everyone else, have seen significant disruption from the
Covid-19 pandemic. We set out a changed plan to this Committee in September
which included updated resource need.
11. Since then CIPFA have published guidance on “limitation of scope” opinions. These
apply where an audit service reaches year end having been unable to gather enough
information to support a definitive opinion. This includes the sensible guidance that
Heads of Audit should quickly communicate such a possibility.

Page 87

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
12. The graph below shows the number of audit days dedicated to various types of work
across Tunbridge Wells and Shared Services for the audit period to date 2020/21
(September to end February 2021). We delayed starting the audit plan until October
because of needing to conclude 2019/20 engagements across the partnership after
suspending our work at the start of the pandemic. Note the graph will not reconcile
direct to the table later in this report, as the chart takes Shared Services days in full
whereas the table apportions them between partners (so, for example, we allocate ⅓
day to Tunbridge Wells for projects examining the shared ICT service).

13. To enable us to both support business grant payments and progress our audit
programme to conclusion, we are using contractors to complete 7 of the audits yet to
be completed. We have good contacts and strong contractual relationships with our
suppliers so I remain confident we can deliver the work efficiently and effectively.
14. On that basis, we continue to believe we have enough resources available to us to
deliver the 2020/21 audit plan and provide a robust opinion at year end. I will,
following the guidance, report quickly to Senior Management and Members if I have
any concerns that forecast will change.

Page 88

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Audit Plan Progress: Beginning 2020/21
15. We have made a start on the plan approved in September, making progress towards
delivering the opinion by year end. The chart below shows expected progress for
audits yet to be completed:

16. The table below also summarises (up to end of February) current days on audit plan
progress, with forecast position later in the year.
Plan Area
Risk Based Audits
Governance
Consultancy
Total
Redeployment
Total MKA Time

Plan Days
200
72
48
320
0
320

Actual to Feb-21
105
23
25
153
52
153

Forecast to May-21
214
26
29
269
60
329

17. We will keep these forecasts and plans under review, especially if there need to be
any further redeployment demands on the audit team.

Page 89

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Audit Project Summary Results
Insurance Claim Management (January 2021) – Conclusion: SOUND
18. We established that the Councils insurance contract with Zurich was awarded as part
of an OJEU compliant tendering exercise with the final decision being approved by
Cabinet. The Council’s insurance policies are renewed at the start of each financial
year and are processed as part of the Zurich cover renewal process. Insurance
premiums are recorded on a schedule and payments are appropriately authorised.
19. The Council has a 5-year cycle for valuations with a fifth of assets revalued each year
and our testing showed that this process has been working as expected. We found 9
out of 10 claims tested were received and forwarded to the relevant department at
Zurich with supporting documentation. The service has since implemented controls
which mean this now happens with all claims.

Residents’ Parking (January 2021) – Conclusion: SOUND
20. We found there are appropriate controls in place to ensure the effective
administration of residents’ parking permits via the new virtual system. Our testing
highlighted a few minor issues, the most notable of which relates to officers
processing 3 residents' car park permit applications without adding evidence or an
explanation to the system. However, this is an example of how the service has
adapted during the Covid-19 pandemic and procedures have now been put in place
to instruct staff on how to record these cases.
21. The new virtual permit process is operating effectively and income from direct debits
and online payments are accounted for accurately each month. All changes to
residents parking orders take place transparently. We therefore believe the level of
risk attached to the process remains low.
Recommendation Summary

Page 90

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Agreed Actions Follow Up Results
22. Our approach to agreed actions is that we follow up each as it falls due in line with
the plan agreed with management when we finish our reporting. We report progress
on implementation to Management Board each quarter. This includes noting any
matters of continuing concern and where we have revisited an assurance rating
(typically after addressing key actions). In total, we summarise in the table below the
current position on following up agreed actions:
Project
Actions brought into 2020/21
New actions agreed in 2020/21
Total Actions Agreed
Fulfilled by 28 February 2021
Actions cfwd past 28 February 2021
Not Yet Due
Delayed but no extra risk
Delayed with risk exposure
23.

Total
28
26
54
45
9
4
5
0

High
Priority
5
0
5
3
2
0
2
0

Medium
Low
Priority Priority
6
17
10
16
16
33
11
31
5
2
2
2
3
0
0
0

Both the deferred high priority actions relate to the General Contract Management
audit. The agreed actions to develop a set of contract management guidelines and to
include guidance on risk in those guidelines have been delayed in their
implementation due to shifting priorities as a result of the pandemic and the
development of a shared procurement service with Maidstone Borough Council.

Page 91

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Audit Quality and Improvement
Acknowledgements and Qualifications
24.

We achieve these results through the hard work and dedication of our team and the
resilience that comes from working a shared service across four authorities.

25.

As a management team in Mid Kent Audit, we wish to send our public thanks to the
team for their work through the year so far.

26.

In particular we continue to support our staff in gaining professional qualifications.

27.

In August, one of our Senior Auditors, Andy Billingham passed the final exam required
to become a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA). Additionally, our two apprentices
continue to make good progress on their qualifications. Cath Byford and Katie
Bucklow have both passed 2 further Birmingham City University exams and parts 2
and 1 respectively of the CIA program.

28.

Tunbridge Wells’s audit manager Jen Warrillow was successful at the final stage of the
Chartered Internal Auditor qualification and is now eligible to apply as a Chartered
Member of the Institute of Internal Audit. Through her hard work and perseverance
Jen was able to finish the year with the qualification having begun it with promotion
to a manager role.

29.

Jen’s success means that all four members of the Management Team hold Chartered
qualifications that enable them to act as Chief Audit Executives under the Standards.

30.

We would also like to thank Managers, Officers and Members for their continued
support as we complete our audit work during the year.

Page 92

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Appendix II: Assurance & Priority level definitions
Assurance Ratings
Full Definition
Strong – Controls within the service are well designed and
operating as intended, exposing the service to no uncontrolled
risk. There will also often be elements of good practice or
value for money efficiencies which may be instructive to other
authorities. Reports with this rating will have few, if any,
recommendations and those will generally be priority 4.
Sound – Controls within the service are generally well designed
and operated but there are some opportunities for
improvement, particularly with regard to efficiency or to
address less significant uncontrolled operational risks. Reports
with this rating will have some priority 3 and 4
recommendations, and occasionally priority 2
recommendations where they do not speak to core elements
of the service.
Weak – Controls within the service have deficiencies in their
design and/or operation that leave it exposed to uncontrolled
operational risk and/or failure to achieve key service aims.
Reports with this rating will have mainly priority 2 and 3
recommendations which will often describe weaknesses with
core elements of the service.
Poor – Controls within the service are deficient to the extent
that the service is exposed to actual failure or significant risk
and these failures and risks are likely to affect the Council as a
whole. Reports with this rating will have priority 1 and/or a
range of priority 2 recommendations which, taken together,
will or are preventing from achieving its core objectives.

Page 93

Short Description

Service/system is
performing well

Service/system is
operating effectively

Service/system requires
support to consistently
operate effectively

Service/system is not
operating effectively

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Finding, Recommendation and Action Ratings
Priority 1 (Critical) – To address a finding which affects (negatively) the risk rating assigned
to a Council strategic risk or seriously impairs its ability to achieve a key priority. Priority 1
recommendations are likely to require immediate remedial action. Priority 1
recommendations also describe actions the authority must take without delay.
Priority 2 (High) – To address a finding which impacts a strategic risk or key priority, which
makes achievement of the Council’s aims more challenging but not necessarily cause severe
impediment. This would also normally be the priority assigned to recommendations that
address a finding that the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of a legal responsibility,
unless the consequences of non-compliance are severe. Priority 2 recommendations are
likely to require remedial action at the next available opportunity, or as soon as is practical.
Priority 2 recommendations also describe actions the authority must take.
Priority 3 (Medium) – To address a finding where the Council is in (actual or potential)
breach of its own policy or a less prominent legal responsibility but does not impact directly
on a strategic risk or key priority. There will often be mitigating controls that, at least to
some extent, limit impact. Priority 3 recommendations are likely to require remedial action
within six months to a year. Priority 3 recommendations describe actions the authority
should take.
Priority 4 (Low) – To address a finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of
its own policy but no legal responsibility and where there is trivial, if any, impact on strategic
risks or key priorities. There will usually be mitigating controls to limit impact. Priority 4
recommendations are likely to require remedial action within the year. Priority 4
recommendations generally describe actions the authority could take.
Advisory – We will include in the report notes drawn from our experience across the
partner authorities where the service has opportunities to improve. These will be included
for the service to consider and not be subject to formal follow up process.

Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Audit & Governance Committee

30 March 2021

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting?

Yes

Internal Audit & Assurance Plan 2021/22
Final Decision-Maker

Audit & Governance Committee

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Dawlings – Portfolio Holder for Finance & Governance

Lead Director

Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy & Development

Head of Service

Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership

Lead Officer/Author

Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership

Classification

Non-exempt

Wards affected

All

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker:
1. Approve the Internal Audit & Assurance Plan for 2021/22. This includes delegating
to the Head of Audit Partnership authority to keep the plan current as set out in the
appendix.
2. Note the Head of Audit Partnership’s view that the Partnership currently has
sufficient resource to deliver the plan and a robust Head of Audit Opinion.
3. Note the Head of Audit Partnership’s assurance that the plan is compiled
independently and without inappropriate influence from management.

Explain how this report relates to the Corporate Priorities in the Five Year Plan:
•

The Internal Audit & Assurance Plan supports good governance which underpins
achievement of all the Council’s priorities.

Timetable
Meeting

Date

Management Board

24 February 2021

Audit & Governance Committee

30 March 2021

Tunbridge Wells Committee Report, version: March 2019

Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Internal Audit & Assurance Plan 2021/22
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out the proposed plan for Mid Kent Audit’s work at Tunbridge
Wells Borough Council during 2021/22. The plan provides an overview of the
range of areas for potential future examination by internal Audit. It is based on
the outcomes of risk assessments and consultation and considers the
resources available to the partnership
1.2 The Audit and Governance Committee as part of its terms of reference must
retain oversight of the internal audit service and its activities. This includes the
Committee’s role to formally consider and approve the plan
2.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the “Standards”) require the
audit Partnership to produce and publish a risk based plan, at least annually, to
determine the priorities for the year. The plan must consider input from senior
management and Members and be aligned to the objectives and risks of the
Council.
2.2 The purpose of this report is to set out the annual assurance plan 2021/22 to
Members. The report details how the plan is devised, the resources available
through the Partnership and the specific audit activities and projects over the
course of the year.
2.3 The Standards set out the requirements of the Chief Audit Executive (the Head
of Audit Partnership fulfils this role for Tunbridge Wells Borough Council) that
must be met when creating the audit plan. Specifically, Standard 2010:

Page 96

Agenda Item 9
2.4 The Audit and Governance Committee needs to obtain assurance on the
effectiveness of the control environment, governance and risk management
arrangements. The principal source of this assurance is derived from the annual
assurance plan.
2.5 Standards explicitly support that the plan is flexible and responsive to emerging
and changing risks across the year. Therefore, like with the 2020/21 audit plan,
the plan includes audit reviews that are high priority and those that are medium
priority. By taking this approach we are able to achieve flexibility within the plan
and ensure that the plan remains relevant throughout the year.
Independence
2.6 The Standards and the Audit Charter also set out the important of internal
audit remaining independent and objective. We are pleased to report to
Members that we have been able to compile this plan free from undue influence
from either officers or Members.
2.7 It is also important to note the key role played by this Committee, as set out in
the Charter, as guarantors of that independence. The Head of Audit Partnership
is bound to discuss any concerns with the Committee Chairman, who should
also be the first point of contact for any Members with concerns. We greatly
appreciate the support provided by this Committee in safeguarding the
independence of Mid Kent Audit.

3.

AVAILABLE OPTIONS

3.1 The Audit and Governance Committee as part of its terms of reference must
retain oversight of the internal audit service and its activities. This includes the
Committee’s role to formally consider and approve the plan. The Council could
decide that it does not want a programme of work for the audit service,
however, this would go against professional Standards.

4.

PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 The appendix sets out the proposed plan for 2021/22, including background
details on how we compiled the plan and how we propose to manage its
delivery. The preferred option is for the Audit and Governance Committee to
consider and approve the plan.

Page 97

Agenda Item 9
4.2 We confirm to Members that, although the plan has undergone broad
consultation with management, it is compiled independently and without being
subject to inappropriate influence.

5.

CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK

5.1 We consult with Managers, Heads of Service and Directors throughout the year
as we undertake our work, but also specifically as part of the audit planning
process. The plan attached represents the collective views of management and
the audit service.
5.2 The overall resource allocation between the partners is consistent with the
collaboration agreement and discussed with the Shared Service Board.

6.

NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
DECISION

6.1 Work will commence on the audit plan in May 2021 and will be used to inform
the Head of Audit Opinion in the summer of 2022.

7.

CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS

Issue

Implications

Sign-off

Legal including
Human Rights
Act

Finance and
other resources

The Council is required by Regulation to
operate an internal audit service, including
agreeing a plan at least annually.
Therefore, the Council must approve a
plan to maintain regulatory conformance.
The work programme set out in the plan is
fulfilled within agreed resources

Staffing
establishment

The work programme set out in the plan is
fulfilled within agreed resources.

Risk
Management

The audit plan draws on the Council’s risk
management in considering the areas for
audit examination. In turn, audit findings
will provide feedback on the identification,

Page 98

Rich Clarke
Head of Audit
Partnership

Agenda Item 9
Issue

Implications

Sign-off

management and controls operating within
the risk management process.
Data Protection

Environment
and Sustainability

8.

We collect and store information in the
course of our audit work examining areas
of the Council. We use that information in
accordance with our collaboration
agreement which, in turn, is in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.
No direct implications.

Community
Safety

No direct implications.

Health and
Safety

No direct implications.

Health and
Wellbeing

No direct implications.

Equalities

No direct implications.

REPORT APPENDICES

The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report:
•

9.

Appendix A: Internal Audit & Assurance Plan 2021/22

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The appendix includes reference to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (full
document at this link). Further background papers, including detailed resource
calculations, risk assessments and notes from consultation meetings can be made
available on request.

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT

Internal Audit & Assurance
Plan 2021/22

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Page 101

1|Page

Appendix A

Introduction
1.

Our mission as an Internal Audit service is to enhance and protect organisational
value. We achieve this by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate
and improve effectiveness of risk management, control and governance. We work
within statutory rules drawn from the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the “Standards”).

2.

The Standards set out how we must approach audit planning. The checklist below
aims to provide immediate assurance to Members on our compliance with Standards
and act as an index.
Standard (CHECKPARAREFSXXX)
2010
A risk-based plan, setting out audit priorities
consistent with the goals of the organisation.
2010
Linked to annual opinion need and internal
(PS)1
audit Charter.
2010.A1 Based on documented risk assessment,
updated at least yearly and consulting Senior
Management and Members.
2010.A2 Reflect expectations of Senior Management,
Members and other stakeholders.

Complied

2020

 see paragraph 16
 see paragraphs

2030
2030
(PS)1
2040

3.

1

Communicated to Senior Management for
review and to Members for approval.
Ensure internal audit’s resources are fit and
effectively used.
Must explain how resource adequacy
assessed, and set out results of any limits.
Must set up policies and procedures to ensure
effective delivery.


 see paragraph 6
 see paragraphs 8
to 17

 see paragraphs
10-12

18-28

 see Appendix I

In spring 2020 the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA)
completed an External Quality Assessment (EQA) considering our compliance with the
Standards. As reported to Members last summer, CIPFA decided we perform in Full
Conformance with the Standards. This conclusion preserves the outstanding result of
our previous EQA in 2015 from the Institute of Internal Audit (IIA). We believe we are
the only audit service to have received ‘Fully Conforming’ assessments from both
major professional bodies charged with overseeing public sector audit.

The public sector variant of the Standards imposes additional obligations beyond the global IIA Standards.

Page 102

2|Page

Appendix A

4.

CIPFA’s report included some advisory recommendations to consider in further
developing the audit service. We describe progress towards fulfilling those
recommendations at paragraph 47.

5.

To protect the independence and objectivity of our service, we work to an Audit
Charter. The Charter sets out the local context for audit, including granting right of
access to systems, records and personnel. At this Council, the Audit, Governance &
Standards Committee approved the Charter in November 2019.

6.

Our plan includes assurance and other work, such as consultancy engagements. We
can accept advisory work where it is the best way to support the Council. The Audit
Charter sets out how we consider such engagements, including how we safeguard our
independence.

7.

We must also clarify that our audit plan cannot address all risks across the Council and
represents our best use of the resources we have available. In approving the plan, the
Committee recognises this limit. To that end, we constantly keep the plan under
review to be live to risks and issues as they emerge.

Risk Assessments
8.

The Standards direct us to begin our audit planning with a risk assessment. This
assessment must consider internal and external risks, including those relevant to the
sector or global risk issues. This plan for 2021/22 represents our views now, but we
will continue to reflect and consider our response as risks and priorities change across
the year. We will report a specific update to Members midway through the year. We
may also consult the Committee (or its Chair) on significant changes.

Global and Sector Risks
9.

In considering global and sector risks we draw on various sources. These include
updates provided by relevant professional bodies, such as the IIA and CIPFA. We also
consult colleagues in local government audit both direct through groups such as
London and Kent Audit Groups and through review of all other published audit plans
in the South-East.

Council Perspective and Expectations
10.

The Council has set out its governance expectations in a Local Code of Corporate
Governance. This Code, based on the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, commits the Council
to seven principles of good governance:

Page 103

3|Page

Appendix A

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

11.

Behaving with integrity, displaying commitment to ethical values and respecting the
rule of law.
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
Defining outcomes with sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits.
Deciding the interventions necessary to optimise achieving intended outcomes.
Developing the entity’s capacity including the ability of its leadership and the
individuals within it.
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management.
Carrying out good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective
accountability.
In its Code of Audit Practice the National Audit Office sets out the expectations
external auditors should have when considering how an authority complies with its
statutory duties. The relevant section is at 3.2 of the Code:
“[Local authorities must] maintain an effective system of internal control that
supports the achievement of their policies, aims and objectives while
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other
resources at their disposal”.

12.

We plan and deliver our work with these expectations in mind. Specifically they make
plain to us that every part of the Council should aim to have effective internal control.
Each part must work in line with strong ethical values and focused on achieving
efficient use of public funds. Our role is to examine the Council’s work against these
expectations, providing assurance on success where we find it and working with
officers to identify responses where we do not.

Audit Risk Review and Consultation
13.

Beyond keeping an awareness of Sector and local risk issues, we conduct our own
assessment. We consider all possible audit entities across the Council (the “audit
universe”) on one specific risk:

What is the risk we offer a mistaken opinion because we don’t understand the service?
14.

As with a typical risk assessment there are two main parts to consider. The first: the
service’s relative importance to the Council’s overall objectives and controls and how
errors would impact our opinion. Here we consider:

Page 104

4|Page

Appendix A

Finance Risk: The value of funds flowing through the service. High value
and high-volume services (such as Council Tax) represent a higher risk
than low value services with regular and predictable costs and income.
Priority Risk: The strategic importance of the service in delivering
Council priorities. For example, Planning and Climate Change will be
higher risk owing to the direct link with the Council’s objectives.
Support Service Risk: The extent interdependencies between Council
departments. For example, many services rely on effective ICT.

15.

The second part is the likelihood we might hold (or gain) a mistaken view of the
service. Here we consider:
Oversight Risk: Considering where other agencies regulate or inspect
the service. For example, Mid Kent Legal Services receive regular
inspections from the Law Society to keep Lexcel accreditation and so
have relatively low risk.
Change Risk: Considering the extent of change the service faces or has
recently experienced. This might be voluntary (a restructure, for
example) or imposed (like new legislation).
Audit Knowledge: What do we know about the service? This considers
not just our last formal review, but any other information we have
gathered from, for example, following up agreed actions. We also
consider the currency of our knowledge, with an aim to conduct a full
review in each service at least every five years if possible.
Fraud Risk: The susceptibility of the service to fraud loss. High volume
services that deal direct with the public and handle cash, for example
licensing, are higher risk.

16.

The results of these various risk assessments provide a provisional audit plan. We
then take this provisional plan out to consultation. We meet Mangers, Heads of
Service and Management Board to get their perspective on our assessment and give
us updates on their sections. We set out that consultation below. We thank these
officers for their time and insight in helping to support our planning.

Page 105

5|Page

Appendix A

Role

Date

Role

Date

Head of Policy & Governance

25 Jan

4 Feb

Mid Kent Services Director
Head of Facilities & Community
Hubs
Head of Digital Services &
Communications
Head of HR, Customer Service &
Culture
Head of Housing, Health &
Environment
Head of Finance & Procurement

28 Jan
29 Jan

Head of Economic Development
& Property
Head of Planning
Chief Executive
Mid Kent Environmental Health
Manager
Head of Mid Kent ICT

8 Feb

10 Feb

Director of Change &
Communities

4 Feb

Head of Revenues & Benefits
Shared Service
Director of Finance, Policy &
Development
Management Board (meeting as
a group)

17.

1 Feb
1 Feb
3 Feb
3 Feb

5 Feb
5 Feb

10 Feb

11 Feb
24 Feb

We set out the full audit universe and audit history in Appendix II.

Resources
18.

Having gained a perspective on the key issues for audit attention in the coming year
we then consider the quantity and quality of our resources.

19.

We calculate an overall resource level based on the audit team establishment and a
chargeability for each grade. Chargeability is the proportion of auditors’ time we
estimate they will spend engaged in work towards fulfilling the plan. This excludes, for
example, management time, training, sickness and general administration. The
chargeability assumption varies between grades from 60% (apprentices) up to 80%
(for qualified auditors). This calculation produces an available number of days across
the partnership of 1,760 days.

20.

This is slightly less than the 1,810 days expected in 2020/21. Although we do have
increased efficiency in the team, we are also carrying vacancies. While we can use the
money saved to source contract auditor support this will be at a more expensive day
rate than an in-house employee. Subject to approval, we hope to fill both vacancies
during mid-2021.

21.

Each authority receives a share in keeping with their contribution to the overall
partnership budget. For Tunbridge Wells this means the 2021/22 audit plan has 400
days to assign.

Page 106

6|Page

Appendix A

22.

Standards oblige us to comment on resource adequacy. We do so considering:
•
•
•
•
•

Whether we had enough to complete our prior year plan.
How the size and complexity of the organisation has changed.
How the organisation’s risk appetite and profile have changed.
How the organisation’s control environment has changed, including how it
has responded to our audit findings.
Whether there have been significant changes to professional standards.

23.

I am, in general, satisfied that we can deliver a robust Head of Audit opinion in Spring
2022. However, a note of caution. Typically, the list of audit engagements suggested
as due by our general risk assessment is longer than we have capacity to deliver. This
is not an inherent problem. Having a longer list for consultation helps achieve a broad
discussion. However, for 2021/22 this ‘gap’ has increased and is growing.

24.

In 2021/22 we will focus on how we can provide assurance in more efficient ways in
future. This is a developing discussion within the profession. We will examine
possibilities such as:
•
•
•
•

Assurance mapping,
Efficiencies in our audit approach,
Smaller, more focused audits,
Cross-cutting audits.

Page 107

7|Page

Appendix A

25.

We provide more information on these approaches in our Quality and Improvement
Plan at Appendix I.

26.

We must also consider the skills, expertise and experience of our team. Following the
exam success reported to Members during 2020/21, we now have every member of
the audit management team holding either a Chartered Auditor or Accountant
qualification2. This is the qualification level precondition for service as Head of Audit.
In the wider team, every auditor holds at least a Certified Auditor qualification or, with
our two apprentices, is wording towards its achievement. We also have within the
team several specialist qualifications in both risk management and counter fraud. This
gives us a wealth of relevant technical expertise to undertake the various specialist
matters identified on our audit plan.

27.

We also have access to sources of specialist expertise through framework agreements
with audit firms, which includes access to subject matter experts. While this access is
less than in previous years access to specialist resources is still available.

28.

Based on the above, we believe we also have skills and expertise to deliver the
2021/22 audit plan.

2

Or, for the Head of Audit Partnership, both.

Page 108

8|Page

Appendix A

Risk Based Audit: 253 Days
29.

The primary part of our audit plan is delivering risk based audit engagements. We
classify these into High and Medium priority engagements in our plan.

High Priority Engagements
30.

These are the 9 engagements we believe we must undertake to support a robust
opinion at year end. We will typically only remove a High Priority engagement from a
plan agreed with Members after consulting with the Chair of the Audit & Governance
Committee. The list below is alphabetical and doesn’t suggest a ranking within the
group or intended delivery order. We will agree timings with a suitable officer sponsor
once we have a Member approved plan.

High Priority Engagement Title & Draft Objectives
1. Homelessness
- To seek assurance on arrangements for Council compliance with the Homelessness
Reduction Act.
2. Investment & Commercial Properties
- To seek assurance on arrangements for collecting and managing commercial property
income.
- To seek assurance on arrangements for managing commercial property occupancy
(including re-lets and voids).
3. IT Development3
- To seek assurance the arrangement for accepting development projects works in line
with procedure and equitably between partners.
- To seek assurance that IT development projects advance efficiently and effectively
4. Leisure Services
- To seek assurance on the efficacy of post-covid opening procedures against plans.
- To seek assurance on the effective management of the leisure contract, especially any
recent modifications.
5. Phishing Response3
- To seek assurance on anti-phishing awareness, training and recording.
- To seek assurance on compliance with procedure for dealing with phishing emails once
received by end users (both user compliance and IT team response).
6. Planning Enforcement
- To seek assurance on arrangements for responding to planning breach reports in
keeping with relevant legislation, Council policy and procedure.

3

Shared service with Swale and Maidstone

Page 109

9|Page

Appendix A

High Priority Engagement Title & Draft Objectives
7. Procurement4
- To seek assurance on compliance with Contract Standing Orders in procurement
- To seek assurance on monitoring information provided to partner authorities
8. Staff Performance Management
- To seek assurance on compliance with the performance management procedures.
- To consider how the Council monitor success of its approach.
9. Waste Collection
- To seek assurance on how the Council monitor compliance with obligations.
- To seek assurance on how the Council deals with and enforce any issues.
- To seek assurance on proper accounting of associated income and expenditure.

Medium Priority Engagements
31.

These are engagements that earn a place in our plan, but where completion could
wait for a future year if needed. This level also incorporates some ‘either/or’
engagements. We are aware of the impact on officers of supporting an audit and so –
typically – aim to have a maximum of three per lead officer per year. With medium
priority engagements we will select the specific matters for review based on in-year
risk assessments and in consultation with relevant officers. We will not typically
consult Members before deciding which Medium Priority Engagements to take
forward for delivery.

32.

We have 17 engagements on this list and aim to deliver at least 8. Any engagements
we do not take forward for 2021/22 we will automatically consider as candidates for
2022/23. The list below is (nearly) alphabetical and doesn’t suggest ranking within the
group or intended delivery order. We will agree timings with a suitable officer sponsor
once we have a Member approved plan.

4

Shared service with Maidstone

Page 110

10 | P a g e

Appendix A

Medium Priority Engagement Title & Draft Objectives
1. Apprenticeships
- To seek assurance on process to administer and manage apprenticeship levy.
2. Building Control
- To seek assurance on appropriate accounting for Building Control Income.
- To seek assurance on arrangements for ensuring Building Control complies with relevant
quality standards in undertaking its work.
3. Climate Emergency Response
- To seek assurance on arrangements for tracking delivery of the Climate Emergency
Response Action Plan
Either 4. Debtors (Accounts Receivable)
- To seek assurance on system for identifying and accounting income due.
- To seek assurance on compliance with Council procedures for debt write-off.
Or 5. General Ledger
- To seek assurance the Council's software accurately records and manages transactions.
- To seek assurance that Ledger adjustments are undertaken accurately and with
appropriate safeguards against false accounting.
- To seek assurance the Council's ledger interfaces reliably and accurately with other
financial and accounting systems.
Either 6. Environmental Enforcement
- To seek assurance on arrangements for complying with relevant policies when
conducting enforcement action.
- To seek assurance the Council has evaluated the appropriate level of enforcement
action, and arrangements for meeting that assessed level.
Or 7. Public Health
- To seek assurance that the Council has set out and accurately monitors expectations of
Health Living Co-ordinators and Every Contact Counts schemes.
8. Health & Safety
- To seek assurance that the Council monitors and complies with its obligations for
providing a safe and healthy environment for directly employed staff.
- To seek assurance the Council has appropriate and monitored contractual relationships
for others where it owes some obligation.
9. Housing Benefit5
- To seek assurance on arrangements for quality assurance.
Either 10. Internal Communications
- To seek assurance on how the Council monitors effectiveness of its communications.
- To seek assurance on compliance with rules and procedures for communications.

5

Shared service with Maidstone

Page 111

11 | P a g e

Appendix A

Medium Priority Engagement Title & Draft Objectives
Or 11. Public Consultations
- To seek assurance on how the Council sets objectives and outcomes for public
consultation exercises.
- To seek assurance the Council undertakes public consultation exercises in line with
stated objectives.
12. Leisure Services
- To seek assurance on the efficacy of post-covid procedures against re-opening plans.
- To seek assurance on the effective management of the leisure contract, especially any
recent modifications.
13. Parking Income
- To seek assurance on the integrity of controls ensuring accurate handling of
online/electronic payments at Council owned car parks.
- To seek assurance on the integrity of controls ensuring accurate cash handling of income
from Council owned car parks.
- To seek assurance on the integrity of controls for accurate accounting of permit income.
14. Payroll & Expenses
- To seek assurance that payroll amendments (including starters and leavers) are
processed accurately and in accordance with Council procedure.
- To seek assurance that expense claims are processed in line with procedure.
- To seek assurance that payroll information accurately interfaces with other systems.
- To seek assurance on compliance with the furlough scheme requirements.
15. Performance Management
- To seek assurance how the Council selects indicators to monitor to track progress
against strategic objectives.
- To seek assurance on how the Council ensures appropriate Data Quality on those
indicators it monitors.
16. Theatre Operations
- To seek assurance on arrangements and compliance with Covid-secure re-opening
- To seek assurance on controls for administering the Circle Membership Scheme
17. Training & Development
- To seek assurance that the Council has considered and documented its intended
approach to training and development, considering quantum, delivery and impact.
- To seek assurance the Council's approach is delivering to requirements.

Page 112

12 | P a g e

Appendix A

Follow-up of Agreed Actions
33.

As part of closing an audit engagement we will typically agree actions with officers to
put right any faults found and minimise risk. We dedicate around 19 days each year to
following up these actions, reporting results to Senior Officers and Members as part of
our routine reporting.

34.

Where an action is significantly overdue or poses significant risk we will highlight this
to the Management Board. We may also report seriously delinquent actions to this
Committee and ask Members to invite responsible officers to explain and account.

Consultancy & Member Support: 55 days
35.

We aim to keep around 10% of the audit plan days as a consultancy fund to provide
general and specific extra advice or training to the Council. This will also include
attendance and contribution to officer groups.

36.

We also use consultancy days when we must expand an audit scope to cover specific
concerns or findings identified during an audit. This effectively allows us to have some
contingency to avoid having to cut short engagements and allow full exploration of
significant findings.

37.

We also use this budget to deliver specific extra work for the Council. In 2020/21 this
involved, for example, redeployment to help the Council manage Covid-19 grant
support to local businesses. In 2021/22 it might involve undertaking any post-payment
checks the Government may need. We would conduct such work using different
members of the audit team to ensure independence.

38.

Finally we also use this budget to support Members, through attendance at and
reporting to Committees. We also provide extra briefings and specific Member
training as sought.

Risk Management: 47 days
39.

At Tunbridge Wells our responsibility encompasses tasks such as leading the risk
management framework, keeping and updating strategic and operational risk
registers. We also contribute to risk reporting to Senior Officers and Members.

40.

We must note responsibility for managing the identified risks remains with the
relevant risk owners. However, we can and do provide advice, support and training.

41.

We hope to expand our risk work in 2021/22, including improving tracking and
reporting with use of dedicated software.

Page 113

13 | P a g e

Appendix A

Planning: 25 days
42.

We use this time to keep current with risks and issues across the Council, the wider
public sector and the audit profession. This ensures our plan can remain dynamic and
responsive to risk through the year. We also use it to manage delivery of the audit
plan across the year and co-ordinate any extra support or advice. Finally, we use this
time to complete the major part of our annual planning exercise, including updating
risk assessments and consultation across the Council.

Counter Fraud Support: 20 days
43.

At Tunbridge Wells our responsibilities include reviewing Counter Fraud and
Whistleblowing policies, providing a channel for officers to raise concerns under the
Public Interest Disclosure Act. We also act as lead contact for the National Fraud
Initiative, a data matching exercise co-ordinated by the Cabinet Office.

44.

As well as these routine roles, we also use this time to conduct investigations on
matters of concern. Although we do not have police powers to compel attendance,
this has included conducting interviews under caution and handling evidence to a
criminal standard.

45.

For 2021/22 we hope to compile more detailed procedures for investigations, drawing
on Cabinet Officer Standards. We also aim to draw up training to support compliance
with the Bribery Act and make clear where people should report any matters of
concern.

Page 114

14 | P a g e

Appendix A

Delivering the Audit & Assurance Plan
46.

We work in full conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and
relevant Codes of Ethics. The sections below include more detail on how we intend to
preserve conformance.

External Quality Assessment
47.

In July we reported to Members we had achieved a second successive fully
conforming conclusion in an External Quality Assessment. The Assessment included a
few recommendations for us to consider. The table below summarises our progress:

Recommendation
Statement limiting
distribution and use of audit
reports and clarifying
conformance to IPPF
Enhance declaration of
interest forms for audit staff

Expand use of data analytics

Provide greater comparative
insight for clients
Renew internal audit
collaboration agreement that
expired in 2019

Current Position
We’ve included a statement (wording agreed with
CIPFA) on our standard 20/21 reporting template.
Complete
We have expanded our compliance and declaration
approach, including a new online form. All staff in the
service completed a fresh declaration in early 2021.
Complete
We have opened discussion with some suppliers and
neighbouring audit services on possible subjects for
expansion. We will follow this further as part of our
21/22 improvements (see ‘Quality and Improvement
Plan’, below)
In progress
We have identified joint audits for 21/22 and will look
to publish cross-partnership reports on select topics.
In progress
Have restarted discussions among partners to clarify
expectations of any new agreement.
In progress

Page 115

15 | P a g e

Appendix A

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
48.

Standard 1300 directs the Head of Audit to set up and keep a quality assurance and
improvement programme. There are two key objectives of the programme. First to
document and clarify how we upholds the quality and integrity of our work. Second to
make plain our commitment to self-reflection on reviewing and improving how we
plan and deliver our work. The Standards encourage Member engagement with and
oversight of the Programme.

49.

We could show conformance in our External Quality Review. However our reviewer
commented we could bring together and summarise our approach in a single
document for Members.

50.

We provide that document at Appendix I. It sets out:
•
•
•

Our ambitions on upholding a commitment to excellent quality audit work.
How we exercise oversight, review and uphold that quality.
How we will review our work over the coming months and years to revisit and
consider how we might further improve.

Next Steps
51.

We will begin planning the delivery of this plan as soon as it receives Member
approval. We expect to begin fieldwork on the earliest 2021/22 engagements in late
May/early June and start reporting results in July or August.

52.

In November we will provide an Interim report to Members. This will summarise work
completed up to then, with any significant findings and actions. We will also update
Members on the progress of our Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.

53.

We aim to complete the plan in late Spring 2022 and will form our conclusions into a
Head of Internal Audit Opinion to support the 2021/22 Annual Governance Statement.
We reserve the right, as set out in the Audit Charter, to report significant findings to
Members outside these scheduled reports. This includes seeking to meet privately
with Members if needed.

Page 116

16 | P a g e

Appendix A

Appendix I: Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
1.

Continuous improvement sits at the heart of internal audit as a profession. Both for the
auditors who work within it and for the contribution it makes to organisations.

2.

The Code of Ethics for auditors states: “[auditors] shall continually improve their proficiency
and the effectiveness and quality of their services”.

3.

The IIA’s Mission of Internal Audit talks about “enhancing organisational value”. With the
definition of internal auditing being: “an independent, objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations”. These are not new
ideals. The IIA’s founding statement published 15 July 1947 dedicated internal audit to:
“protecting the interests of the organisation, including pointing out existing deficiencies to
provide a basis for appropriate corrective action”.

4.

As this drive applies to the services we audit, the need to reflect and seek improvement
applies no less to us in Mid Kent Audit. This Plan has two principal parts:

Quality
Setting out the standards we apply to our work, how we guarantee and uphold them.

Improvement
Setting out how we examine our work, to consider its efficiency, effectiveness and
place in industry best practice.
5.

These features sit within the context of Mid Kent Audit’s overall vision:

“To be the highest quality local authority audit service in the UK”.
6.

We will update this plan regularly, no less than once each year. In particular we will form the
“Improvement” section into a rolling programme to ensure our internal ‘universe’ receives no
less review in search of improvement than we apply to our partner authorities.

7.

The Mid Kent Audit team fully embraces the professionalism and high standards inherent to
the modern auditor. We remain grateful for the support, encouragement and challenge of
members and officers in our partner authorities to help achieve this goal.

Page 117

17 | P a g e

Appendix A

Quality
Mid Kent Audit’s last two external quality
assessments confirmed we work in full
conformance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards and the International
Professional Practices Framework.
This is the standard we seek to uphold. We do
so in four main ways:

Team Expectations and Approach
8.

We expect our team to uphold the IIA Code of Ethics, ensuring they work with Integrity,
Objectivity, Confidentiality and Competency always. This means working as a professional
auditor, supporting colleagues and clients as part of the audit team.

9.

We recognise the markers of quality work listed in Standard 2420 (Quality of
Communications). These state that we must be accurate, objective, clear, concise,
constructive, complete and timely. We recognise our overall goal in helping our clients by
providing assurance and supporting improvement across their control environment and
service delivery.

Training and Development
10.

We have consistently preserved strong financial and budgetary support for training and
development throughout the team. Our ambition is to support every member of Mid Kent
Audit in earning and keeping a suitable professional qualification.

11.

This is why we, as well as compulsory training demanded as part of our employment with
Maidstone Borough Council, set aside at least 40 hours each year for training. The 40 hours
level is consistent with keeping qualification as a Certified Internal Auditor, but where other
qualifications have different needs we will typically support these too. We also keep a
financial budget equal to supporting that volume of training.

12.

Our starting position is to support all further training and development where there is benefit
to the Partnership and the individual. Naturally we will face practical and budgetary restraints
that may vary over time. Nevertheless if we can find a way to support development, we will
seek to do so. We also celebrate the team’s training and achievement in our reporting to
Members and others.

13.

We are also a service keen to look outside our borders for development and best practice.
While ensuring we continue to deliver our core service, we welcome opportunities to engage
with and learn from the broader audit profession.

Page 118

18 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Tools and Guidance
14.

We use Ideagen’s Pentana Audit Management Software. This is an industry leading software
package, tailored for use in Mid Kent Audit. Pentana is online, ensuring our team can work
collaboratively and electronically from any location with an Internet connection. Pentana
guides an auditor step-by-step through completing an audit engagement. If followed, that
guidance will ensure our work remains fully conforming with the Standards.

15.

The guidance is available within Pentana using ‘mouse over’ and document libraries. We also
keep a shared drive accessible to the whole audit team with library versions of guidance and
copies of relevant rules and publications (for example, the Standards themselves).

16.

We have a group membership of the Institute of Internal Audit. This gives every member of
the audit team access to online support and guidance from the internal audit profession.

17.

We aim to introduce new versions of Pentana within three months of their release. This will
ensure we remain current in using the latest software, while also giving the time and
opportunity to consider how best to use any new or amended features.

18.

We have within Pentana a library of templates (including report and brief templates) for
auditors to use in engagements. These ensure consistency in approach and presentation, but
also allow for variation and innovation to support quality work.

Supervision, Review and Coaching
19.

20.

As required by Standards 2340, all work we complete is supervised. We embrace the three
objectives of that supervision set out in the standard:
•

Objectives are achieved: Each engagement sets objectives in its brief. The
engagement reviewer(s) will ensure the final report is clear in fulfilment of those
objectives and reporting of results.

•

Quality is assured: The engagement reviewer(s) will ensure files contain
documentation in line with Standard 2330 (sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful to
support engagement results). They will also ensure auditors follow all relevant
guidance with variance clearly set out.

•

Staff are developed: The engagement reviewer(s) will ensure the team fully
consider their own development goals and will support them in their achievement.

We save evidence of review through use of Pentana’s ‘Completed’ and ‘Approved’ markers.
We may raise review notes during an engagement, but will often not save them when closing

Page 119

19 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
a file. Similarly, we will not typically keep interim drafts of work in Pentana after completing
an engagement, but auditors may extract and file separately to aid their personal
development.
21.

Review is not directive on matters of professional judgement. Each auditor is a professional in
their own right, bound by the Code of Ethics to act with integrity. This includes a responsibility
for auditors to not follow audit approaches or findings that conflict with their professional
judgement. We have in place a Professional Judgement Policy setting out how we deal with
differences of judgement that arise within audit teams. However as set out in Standard 2340,
the Chief Audit Executive holds overall responsibility.

22.

Depending on the risk associated with the audit and team experience, engagements may have
either or both an ‘A’ or ‘B’ Reviewer. Their different standard roles are:
•

A Reviewer: Responsible for direct supervision of the lead auditor(s) including
detailed review of fieldwork. Will read draft client communications to ensure
consistency with the documented engagement findings. The A Reviewer will
typically have a more ‘hands on’ or coaching style engagement with the lead
auditor(s), so will play a key role in development. An A Reviewer could be a Manager
or Senior Auditor.

•

B Reviewer: Responsible for overall quality assurance and issuing formal client
communications. The ‘B’ Reviewer will always be a Manager.

23.

Where an engagement has a single reviewer, that reviewer will always be a Manager
combining both ‘A’ and ‘B’ roles.

24.

Deciding whether to have a single or dual review rests with the manager who has
responsibility for the relevant audit plan. Typically, engagements led by a Senior Auditor will
have a single reviewer and those led by an Apprentice will have dual review. The Manager
should set out the early review rationale at Step P0 and affirm after planning is complete at
Step P6. Where circumstances of the engagement need a later decision to expand the review
team, the decision and reasoning will feature in at Step F1.

25.

An Issuing Managers’ Guide sets out considerations for Managers when issuing formal client
communication. This Guide also includes the conditions under which the Chief Audit Executive
has delegated his responsibilities under Standard 2440 (Disseminating Results).

26.

Besides review of individual engagements we also undertake periodic Cold Reviews. These
take place after completing the engagement file and seek to look back on the work to assess
quality and conformance with Standards. Twice a year we will undertake a Cold Review of a
sample of files using the checklist and approach set out in the appendix to this plan.

Page 120

20 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT

Improvement
27.

An important feature of our Improvement plan is to ensure we take a comprehensive look at
our approach. Just like an audit universe must eventually touch on every part of our work. The
examination won’t necessarily result in change, but we ought not assume anything is perfect
and could not bear improvement. At the appendix we show the internal ‘audit universe’.

28.

Deciding where to focus will draw on three principal sources of information:

-

Professional Updates: Information produced by the profession, for example IIA Position Papers.
We have a specific approach to considering these, set out below.

-

External Feedback: Information from our partner authorities on the strengths and weaknesses
of the service and where we might develop.

-

Internal Feedback: Information drawn from review (including cold review) as well as comments
from the audit team on how they find working with our approach.

Professional Updates
Professional institutes such as the IIA and CIPFA
sometimes issue guidance for internal auditors to
consider. For the IIA, such guidance may also feature in
the International Professional Practices Framework. The
IIA publishes its updates (available to members only) at
this link. We will also receive updates through bodies
such as the Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board, the
Local Authority Chief Auditors’ Network and Kent and
London Audit Groups.
29.

We will consider relevant updates through the Management Team. As well as influencing the
QAIP, we may put updates to more immediate use, for example by informing training.

30.

We will go through a similar approach when considering whether and how to adopt significant
updates to our audit management software.

Page 121

21 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Building the Improvement Plan
Considering evidence
•Professional Updates
•External Feedback
•Internal Feedback

Select Quarterly Focus Area
•Rebuttable presumption in favour of scheduled plan area
•Endorsed at Management Team
•MT commission area scope and approach

Review Focus Area
•Various possible review approaches, including internal working groups, hired
consultants, client focus groups &c.
•No single approach, and mixed methods acceptable

Recommended Actions
•Paper to Management Team
•Three recommendation types: (1) Retain area unchanged, (2) Further work, (3)
Changes recommended
•Paper will also consider how to implement change

Implement Change
•Could be immediate if relatively low impact
•Could wait until new audit year
•Could be after further review and consultation

Review Change
•Annual summary of QAIP considered by Management Team and at Team Day
•QAIP results also reported to Senior Management and Members
•Review periods build into papers recommending significant change

One key point is that this approach exists to preserve structure, ensure quality and treat issues
consistently. It is not a barrier to innovation. We welcome people’s ideas on how to improve our
work, in big and small ways. We will continue to innovate outside this formal structure where doing
so improves the service we offer.

Page 122

22 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
The Improvement Plan
We aim to keep a two-year rolling programme of matters to examine within the audit universe.
Below is the current draft. We will keep a current version in the audit team shared drive. We will
also publish a report each year to Members.
Year

Focus Area

Draft Objectives

Timing

2020/21

Assurance Ratings
& Finding
Priorities

Clarify the purpose of our use of assurance
ratings and findings priorities. Consider
whether the current definitions remain fit
for that purpose and propose alternatives
for consultation with officers and
members.

Proposal for
consultation by
Christmas 2020.
Consult and pilot
through 2021/22 &
introduce 2022.

Ethics

Fulfil EQA recommendation of improved
declarations of interest within the audit
team.

Proposal by early
2021 to go live
alongside Spring
2021 appraisals.

Client Liaison

Review our approach to engaging with
audit contacts to explain the process and
purpose of audit.

Proposal by Spring
2021 to go live when
introducing 21/22
plan engagements.

Review Process

Consider our approach to completing file
reviews and ensuring it supports
consistency, quality and development.

Proposal by Summer
2021 for introduction
across Autumn

Assurance
Mapping

Using anticipated new Pentana feature,
draw up an approach to creating
assurance maps across authorities.

Proposal by
Christmas 2021 for
incorporation into
22/23 audit planning.

Test Completion

Following on from looking at file reviews,
consider approach to testing. In particular
scope for greater use of computer assisted
audit tools.

Proposal by early
2022 for
implementation in
22/23 audit year.

Risks & Controls

Review our guidance to support auditors
in identifying and documenting risks and
controls

Proposal by spring
2022 for 22/23 year
engagements.

2021/22

Page 123

23 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Annex I: Mid Kent Audit Process Universe
Planning Processes
•
•
•
•
•

Background Research & Intelligence: How we research businesses and systems.
Client Liaison: The information we provide to clients. 2020/21 Plan
Budget Planning: How we draw up and monitor budgets.
Risks & Controls: Identifying, documenting and assessing. 2021/22 Plan
Test Creation: Drawing up efficient and effective tests

Fieldwork Processes
•
•
•
•
•

Documentation: What we keep on file and how it is presented.
Test Completion: Approaches including tools such as CAATs. 2021/22 Plan
Sampling: Selection apt samples and documenting rationale for selection.
Findings/Causes/Effects: Identifying findings and ascribing causes and effects.
Amending Work Programmes: How and when to amend and documenting any changes.

Reporting Processes
•
•
•
•

Assurance & Finding Ratings: Is our system of ranking fit for purpose? 2020/21 Plan
Follow-Up: Is our approach effective at efficiently supporting improvement?
Report Formats: Considering templates and standard content.
Review Process: Does it ensure quality and support team development. 2021/22 Plan

Other Processes
•
•
•
•
•

Annual Planning: Process to support developing the plan for Members
Ethics: Ensuring and documenting adherence to code. 2020/21 Plan
Audit Management Software: What package we use and when to upgrade.
Assurance Mapping: How we consolidate information on assurance. 2021/22 Plan
Consolidated Reporting: Reporting results of our work at an authority level to Senior
Officers and Members.

Annex II: Cold Review Process and Checklist
We will be piloting cold reviews in Spring 2021. We will add the final approved checklist arising from
those pilots in the Quality and Improvement Plan from mid-2021/22 onwards.

Page 124

24 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Appendix II: Audit Universe
The “Audit Universe” is our running record of all processes at the Council we might examine.
The list below shows Tunbridge Wells specific entities on our current audit universe,
followed by a record of audit audit history: (Key: D = Delivered Engagement, P = Planned
Engagement in 2020/21, H = High Priority on 2021/22 Plan, M = Medium Priority on Plan)
21/22

20/21

Corporate

19/20

Community
Safety

18/19

Communications

17/18

Budgetary Control
Creditors
Debtors
Financial Planning
General Ledger
Insurance
Payroll & Expenses
Treasury Management
Internal Communications
Public Consultations
Social Media/Website
CCTV & Monitoring
Licensing
Public Health & Wellbeing
Safety Partnerships
Business Continuity
Climate Emergency
Complaint Handling
Contract Management
Counter Fraud
Customer Services
Declarations of Interest
Emergency Planning
Information Management
Internal Audit
Legal Services
Performance Management
Procurement
Project Management
Risk Management
Safeguarding
Subsidiary Company

16/17

Accounting &
Finance

15/16

Process
14/15

Process Type

P
D

D
D

M
D

D

M
D

D
D

D

M

D
M
M

D

D
D

D

M
D
D
M
D
D
D
D
D
D

D
D

D

D

D
D
M
H

D
D

Page 125

P
D

25 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT

Human
Resources

Information
Technology

Parking

Planning

21/22

Housing

20/21

Environmental
Health
Estatement
Management

19/20

Environment

D

18/19

Democracy

D

17/18

Economic Development
Leisure Services
Museum
Parks
Theatre Operations
Theatre Ticketing
Visitor Economy
Election Management
Electoral Registration
Member Development
Members’ Allowances
Cemeteries & Crematoria
Environmental Enforcement
Grounds Maintenance
Waste Collection
Waste Collection (Garden)
Air Quality
Food Safety
Facilities Management
Property Acquisition
Property Income
Home Improvement Grants
Homelessness
Leaseholders
Absence Management
Health & Safety
HR Policy
Recruitment
Staff Performance Mgmt
Training & Development
Workforce Planning
IT Asset Management
IT Backup & Recovery
IT Development
Network Security
Technical Support
Parking Enforcement
Parking Income
Residents’ Parking
Building Control
Conservation & Heritage

16/17

Culture &
Economy

15/16

Process
14/15

Process Type

D
M

D
D
D

P
M
D
D
P
D
D

D
D

M
D

P
H
D
P
D
P
D

D

H
D

D

D

H
D

D

M

D
H
M
M
P
P

D
D
D

D

D

D

P

H
H

D
D

D
D

M
D
M

D

Page 126

26 | P a g e

Appendix A

MID KENT AUDIT
Process Type

Process
21/22

20/21

19/20

18/19

17/18

16/17

15/16

14/15

Revenues &
Benefits

Development Management
Land Charges
Local Plans
Planning Administration
Planning Enforcement
Pre-Application Planning
Section 106/Developer Income
Business Rates
Council Tax
Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Disc. Housing Payments
Housing Benefit
Universal Credit

P
D
D
D
H
D
D
D
D

D
D

D
D
D

D

Page 127

D
D

D
M
D

27 | P a g e

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Update on complaints received under
the Members’ Code of Conduct
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Summary
Lead Member: Leader of the Council, Councillor Alan McDermott
Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development
Head of Service: Patricia Narebor, Head of Legal Partnership and Monitoring Officer
Report Author: Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance)
Classification: Public document
Wards Affected: All

Approval Timetable
Audit and Governance Committee

Date
30 March 2021

Recommendations
Officer recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder:
1. That the Committee note the update on complaints received under the Members’
Code of Conduct.

Page

1 of 6

Page 129

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 10

1. Introduction and Background
1.1

This report provides an update on complaints received under the Members’ Code
of Conduct in the period 1 September 2020 to 1 March 2021.

1.2

The current Members’ Code of Conduct (“the Kent Code”) for Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council was adopted by the Borough Council on 18 July 2012. It was a
requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that all councils adopt a Code of
Conduct and that the Code adopted must be based upon the Nolan Principles of
Conduct in Public Life. At the same Full Council meeting the Council also
adopted arrangements for dealing with complaints (“the Kent Procedures”) made
under the Code of Conduct in the Tunbridge Wells area. The current version of
the Kent Procedures can be found on the Council’s website.

1.3

The Localism Act 2011 requirement to adopt a Code of Conduct also applied to
the parish and town councils in the Tunbridge Wells area and all have adopted a
Code of Conduct. These parish and town councils, except for Paddock Wood,
adopted the same ‘Kent Code’ which had been agreed across Kent and was
adopted by the County Council, most of the district councils and most of the
parish and town councils in Kent. Paddock Wood Town Council adopted the
National Association of Local Councils model Code of Conduct.

1.4

Under the Localism Act 2011 the Borough Council is responsible for dealing with
any complaints made under the Members’ Codes of Conduct against Borough,
Parish and Town Council members throughout the Tunbridge Wells Borough
area. The arrangements for dealing with complaints (“the Kent Procedures”) that
were adopted by the Borough Council also apply in cases concerning parish and
town councils.

1.5

The Borough Council has resolved that oversight of the Kent Procedures falls
under the Audit and Governance Committee.

2. Update on complaints received
2.1

Page

2 of 6

At each Audit and Governance Committee meeting the Monitoring Officer
provides an update regarding Code of Conduct complaints. The update omits
details of the identities of the complainant and the subject member because the
Localism Act repealed the previous statutory process under which names were
published. In the absence of that statutory process, the Borough Council needs
to adhere to the requirements of the Data Protection Act. Therefore, the names
of parties involved in Code of Conduct complaints are kept confidential unless it
is appropriate to disclose the names as part of a formal investigation and
consideration by a Hearing Panel at a Standards Committee.

Page 130

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 10
2.2

At the Audit and Governance Committee on 15 September 2020 it was reported
that there were 2 outstanding complaints against Borough Councillors.
The conclusion of these complaints had been delayed due to the workload
caused by Covid-19. Both complaints have now been concluded as follows:
•

Allegation of bullying and disclosing information on social media.
Having sought the opinion of the Council’s Independent Person, the
complaint was concluded by way of informal resolution. The Subject
Member was asked to issue an apology to the complainant, delete the
offending posts from social media and agree to attend a relevant training
session.

•

Allegation of bullying and disclosing information on social media.
Having sought the opinion of an external Independent Assessor, no
further action was taken as a result of the complaint failing one or more of
the Legal Jurisdiction tests.

2.3

Since the last meeting, the Monitoring Officer has received three further
complaints. One complaint against a borough councillor and two complaints
against parish councillors. The first complaint alleged bullying and bringing the
office or the Authority into disrepute, the second complaint alleged failure to
disclose declarations of interest and the third complaint alleged the sharing of
confidential information. All 3 complaints have now been concluded as follows:
•

Allegation of bullying and bringing the office or the Authority into
disrepute.
Having sought the opinion of the Council’s Independent Person, no further
action was taken as a result of the complaint meeting one or more of the
Local Assessment Criteria.

•

Failure to disclose declarations of interest.
Having sought the opinion of the Council’s Independent Person, the
complaint was concluded by way of informal resolution. The Subject
Member was advised to ensure DPI forms were completed appropriately
and undertake to declare interests at future parish meetings whilst also
refraining from taking part in any discussions or votes where appropriate.

•

Sharing confidential information.
Having sought the opinion of the Council’s Independent Person, the
complaint was concluded by way of informal resolution. The Subject
Member was asked to issue an apology to the complainant and agree to
attend a training session.
There are currently no outstanding Member complaints where a formal
complaint form has been received.

Page

3 of 6

Page 131

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 10
2.4

Following the informal resolution of one complaint, the Monitoring Officer
received comments from the complainant that they were not consulted about the
use of the informal resolution process and therefore considers that the process
followed was flawed.
The complaint was reviewed against the preliminary tests and further reviewed to
address the complainant’s subsequent queries. The complaint was not
investigated under the procedure outlined under Annex C for the purpose of a
Standards Committee Panel Hearing, since it was considered that the complaint
did not merit such a formal investigation. Paragraph 4.2 notes that such an
approach is relevant when the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the
Independent Person considers that the complaint 4.2(a) is serious enough to
warrant one of the sanctions that can be applied; and/or there is a disruptive
pattern of behaviour (consisting of less serious conduct).
The informal resolution was referred to in the initial letter to the complainant and
the decision made is in line with the complaints handling process. The
complainant sought an apology which the Subject Member provided (though the
complainant remained dissatisfied). The outcome would not have been different,
had the complainant specifically expressed their dissatisfaction to engaging in an
informal resolution.

3. Preferred Option and Reason
3.1

That Members’ note the update on complaints received under the Members’
Code of Conduct.

4. Consultation results and previous committee
feedback
4.1

This report does not require further consultation as it is for information only.

5. Next Steps: Communication and
Implementation of the decision
5.1

Page

4 of 6

The Committee’s decision will be published in the minutes of this meeting on the
Council’s website in due course.

Page 132

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 10

6. Cross Cutting Issues
A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act)
It is a requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that all Councils adopt a Code of Conduct and
that the Code adopted must be based upon the Nolan Principles of Conduct in Public Life. The
Members’ Code of Conduct was adopted by Full Council on 18 July 2012 and can be found on
the Council’s website.

Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

B. Finance and Other Resources
If a complaint proceeds to investigation it may be carried out by an external person. If this is the
case, there will be an irrecoverable cost to the Council.

C. Staffing
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

D. Risk Management
An effective complaints system is part of an effective system of governance.

Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

E. Environment and Sustainability
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

F. Community Safety
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

Page

5 of 6

Page 133

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 10
G. Equalities
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

H. Data Protection
Data will be held and processed in accordance with the data protection principles contained in
the Data Protection Act 2018.

Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

I. Health and Safety
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

J. Health and Wellbeing
There are no relevant issues identified within this report.
Gary Rowland, Senior Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 18/03/2021

Page

6 of 6

Page 134

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Update on complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct

Agenda Item 11

Work Programme
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Re-occurring items
Report Title
Audit and Governance Committee
Annual Report
Annual Internal Audit Report and
Opinion
Internal Audit and Assurance Plan
Internal Audit Interim Report
Internal Audit Charter
Annual Audit Letter
External Audit (including Audit Fee)
External Audit Progress Report
Financial Report and Audit Findings
19/20
Annual Complaints Report and Local
Government Ombudsman Annual
Review
Update on Member Complaints
Corporate Health and Safety
Responsibilities
Strategic Risk Review (incorporating
Annual Risk Management Summary
in July)
Attendance of Strategic Risk Owners

21/07/20 15/09/20
X

24/11/20

30/03/21 26/05/21

X
X
X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Steve
David
Baughen Candlin

Appointment of members to the
Constitution Review Working Party

William
Benson
X

Ad-hoc items
Amendments to the Constitution
Request for a dispensation
Briefings/member development

Page

1 of 1

Page 135

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Work Programme

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Urgent Business
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be
stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page

1 of 1

Page 137

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Urgent Business

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

Date of the Next Meeting
For Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021

Procedural Item
To note that the next scheduled meeting is Monday 26 May 2021.

Page

1 of 1

Page 139

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Date of the Next Meeting

This page is intentionally left blank

